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Strategic report

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2016

The Directors present their Strategic Report for 31 December 2016 for Ruspetro Limited (hereinafter referred
to “the Company™} and its subsidiary undertakings (together referred to as “the Group”), for the year ended
31 December 2016.

2016 Performance Overview

2016 has been a year in which the Board and Management have positioned the Compary for future profitable
growth taking into account the low oil price environment we see in the foreseeable future. We have matured a
compelling long-term economic development plan for our assets based on our technology driven approach,
capitalising on our strides in technology implementation, surface and sub-surface project execution
capability, and delivery of further reduction in our actual and forecast well costs.

During the year, we have built on our successful 2015 horizontal drilling campaign, having drilled and
completed four horizontal multi-stage fractured development wells and eight appraisal wells (five horizontal
and three deviated). Bringing these wells online allowed production to reach a level of 7.6 kbopd at the end of
September, a record for the Group. The production performance of the last horizontal well (well 412)
delivered particularly encouraging initial rates in excess of 4.5 kbopd on natural flow, at a cost of under
US$4.0 million — being approximately one third of the cost of the first horizontal well drilled and completed
by the Group in 2014. Average oil production in 2016 amounted to 4.2 kbopd, a 6% increase from last year.

In 2016, the Group has continued building a robust business with positive production operating cash flows at
stagnant oil prices. This in itself, however, is not enough to guarantee the long-term sustainability of the
business, given the Group's current level of debt. At current oil prices and production levels, the Group is not
able to generate sufficient free cash flow to cover the combination of capital investment, interest, and
principal repayments on its outstanding borrowings, and it continues to draw down debt to finance its
development growth. The only manner in which the Group will be able to repay its existing loans and generate
a return for its investors in today’s low oil price environment, is through a substantial ramp-up in production,
which will require significant additional investment.

The combined simultaneous factors of the Group'’s development success and leverage has at the Board level
raised the strategic question of how best to raise the funds necessary to bring the business to the point where
it is generating sufficient free cash flow to meet its financial obligations while yielding a return for
shareholders. The Board considered that the funding necessary to achieve the Group’s objectives is currently
not available in the public equity markets, given the general sector sentiment and the strained global
geopolitical environment. Furthermore, given the Group’s current level of debt, the Board believes that the
additional investment required to generate the necessary production growth cannot be achieved by borrowing
more, and hence must be achieved via raising equity in the Group from a strategic investor. As a result, the
Group has decided last year to delist its shares in order to unlock more opportunities for additional equity
fund raising to secure the required development plan implementation.

Strategic Review

The Group’s aim is to create value for shareholders through the accelerated low-cost development of
Ruspetro’s oil and gas reserves through operational and capital efficiency, via de-risking its assets through
smart development and appraisal drilling, while adhering to high standards of corporate governance and
being attentive to operating safely and responsibly.

As a relatively small company in the sector, the Group must effectively utilize a complete range of exploration
and production technical skills that are available within the industry. The Group has identified the following
key in-house strategic capabilities that are critical to its success:

reservoir geology;

seismic modelling;

well design;

fracturing design and execution;
reservoir management:

- waterflooding of low-permeability reservoirs;

- horizontal well evaluation and numerical modelling;
production well and system optimisation (oil/gas/water);
o production chemistry;

s lean/flexible facilities.

The key operational principles in the Group are:

» robust decision making through the use of appropriate decision analysis support tools;

» a strong value-focused mindset. Naturally, the Group wishes to have the lowest cost solutions, but initially
there may be additional costs to test an idea that will lead, if proven, to longer-term value;

» aninsistence on fully integrated technical and commercial thinking and evaluation;

» arigorous challenging of the concept of “this is how we do it in Western Siberia”;

« afocus on the adoption of field-proven ideas, mainly from the US in terms of fracturing concepts, but aiso
in other key areas around the world;

+ an emphasis on a core international team of experienced technical staff to oversee and mitigate the risk of
transferring new ideas into the Group’s business;
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Strategic report

» a particular focus on collaboration with smaller service companies for mutual benefit to test and if
successful bring their ideas and technology into the Group's operations.

The Group uses the latest available software technology in order to support all field development efforts.
Integrated data storage and meodelling systems ensure that all data is properly quality controlled and then
used quantitatively to define and support development activities such as appraisal/development drilling, well
interventions and enhanced recovery projects.

The key strategic objectives for 2017, apart from fundraising, is to firstly complete the appraisal of our license
area, with completion of the 565 km2 3D seismic program, and secondly to complete investments in our in-
field facilities required to rapidly ramp up production in year end 2017/2018. Those strategic objectives of
2017 will serve us well to the overall long-term strategic objective of building on production growth using this
new seismic data to develop a de-risked portfolio of well locations.

The Group’s future, however, is conditional on securing additional development funding, coupled with
successful refinancing of its principal debt facilities, due in 2019, on maturity, although the timing and level
will depend on the development scenario adopted as well as the oil price environment.

Financial Review

Revenues

Revenues were US$44.0 million in 2016, compared with US$43.9 million in 2015. Revenues in 2016 were
mostly in line with the prior year, with three material factors offsetting one another: (1) a reduction in
revenues driven by a 12% reduction in the average realised oil price, (2) an increase in revenues generated by
a 10% increase in liquids production and (3) an increase in revenues from a 28% lower export duty due to
lower oil prices.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales, including depreciation and production-related taxes was US$57.2 million in 2016, compared
with US$53.9 million in 2015. The increase was driven by various factors, primarily & 10% increase in oil
production for the period, and a US$1.6 million increase in change of inventories and cost of purchased oil.
The additional volumes produced drove a US$0.5 million increase in production-related services, as well as a
US$o0.5 million increase in depletion expense due to the production-related reduction in the volume of proved
developed reserves in 2016.

Selling and administrative expenses ("S&A”)
S&A expenses include oil transportation costs, payroll expenses, rent, professional services, depreciation, IT
and telephony, and other expenses.

S&A expenses in 2016 amounted to US$14.7 million, compared with US$15.6 million in 2015. The decrease
resulted from savings, mostly in payrell expenses and oil transportation costs, which were partially achieved
due to a 10% weakening of the Russian Ruble.

LEBITDA

EBITDA was US$0.6 million in 2016, compared with US$2.6 million in the previous year. The drop in
EBITDA was primarily driven by lower netback (revenues from oil sales less export duty less transportation
expenses) which was a result of the 12% decline in the average realised oil price, and, to a lesser extent, the
increase in cost of sales.

These effects were offset by additional contributions to gross profit from a 10% increase in hiquids production,
a lower export duty, due to the falling trend of oil prices, and lower S&A expenses, partially achieved through
the weakening of the Russian Ruble.

Comprehensive loss for the year and foreign eschange

The Group recorded a loss of US$19.9 million for 2016, compared with US$99.1 million in 2015. The 2016
result includes a foreign exchange gain of US$47.7 million, compared with foreign exchange loss
US$57.2 million in the previous year. The Group’s operating companies, whose functional currency is the
Russian Ruble, have borrowings in US Dollars. As a result of the Ruble strengthening on 31 December 2016
compared with 31 December 2015, those borrowings in Ruble terms have substantially decreased, resulting in
the accounting recognition of US$45.7 million in foreign exchange gains. After deducting the foreign
exchange results from both years, the Group’s loss would have been US$67.6 million in 2016, compared with
US$41.9 million in 2015.

Balance sheet

Non-current assets have increased by UUS$90.4 million, largely explained by the strengthening of the Ruble on
31 December 2016 compared to 31 December 2015 (contributing US$62.5 million) and by capital
expenditures of US$46.4 million incurred during the period, partiaily offset by depletion and depreciation of
US$28.5 million.

Total equity has fallen by US$15.0 million from negative US$40.0 million to negative US$55.0 million as at
31 December 2016. The movement in total equity was a result of the annual operating loss and finance costs of
debt servicing, partially offset by foreign exchange gain as a result of Ruble strengthening on
31 December 2016 compared to 31 December 2015.

Ruspetre Limited
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In December 2016, addendums to the credit facilities with Otkritie were concluded, whereby interest became
payable quarterly based on greater of 1.5% or the 3 month Libor, and the residual accrued (unpaid} interest
will becomne due together with loan principal in November 2019. In March 2017, the Group signed an identical
addendum with Frust Bank (“Trust”) as with Otkritie, resetting terms of interest payable.

Borrowings have increased during the reporting year by 1/$$80.2 million to UUS$387.6 million, reflecting
US$92.1 million drawn down of the Group’s existing bank facilities with Otkritie and Trost Bank and a
US$4.8 million net increase of accrued interest on bank loans following the addendums signed in December
2016, partly offset by repayments of principal of US$4.0 million, and payment of accrued interest on
shareholder loans, resulting in a net decrease of accrued interest of US$13.3 million.

The Group’s current liabilities decreased by US$0.8 million from US$49.0 million to US$48.2 million as at
31 December 2016, Movements in current liabilities include the reclassification of long-term part of an
existing shareholder loan from Makayla Investments Limited {“Makayla”) in the amount of US$15.5 million,
which was a current liability at the previous reporting date. In December 2016 the Group concluded an
addendum to the Makayla loan agreement rescheduling the principal and accrued interest payments into
several parts, with US$2.0 million payable in April and October 2017 and April and October 2018, with final
settlement of remaining principal of US$15.8 million due in May 2019.

Trade and other payables increased by US$17.2 million mostly due to an increase of trade accounts payable
and the Group’s prepayment facility with Glencore Energy UK Ltd (“*Glencore™) and Energo Resurs LLC
(“EnergoResurs”, a Russian company affiliated with Glencore}. Trade accounts payable increased by US$10.9
million te US$16.3 million as at 31 December 2016 due primarily to significant construction activities and 3D-
seismic surveying operations performed by a Group’s contractor at the end of the year.

Within current liabilities between 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 there was a US$7.6 million net
increase in prepayments to Glencore mainly as a result of a US$10.0 million export prepayment facility drawn
down in November, and a RUR35¢ million (US$5.7 million) domestic prepayment facility drawn down from
Energo Resurs in December of 2016. A domestic prepayment facility of RUR750 million (US$11.3 million)
drawn down from Energo Resurs in May 2016 was partially offset against sales by 31 December 2016.

Cash flow

In 2016, the Group generated a net cash inflow from operating activities of US$0.2 million, resulting from a
cash contribution from changes in working capital of US$0.2 million. This resulted mostly from an increase in
trade and other payables of US$3.4 million, partly offset by an increase in taxes receivable by US$2.5 million
and trade receivables by US$0.6 million.

During the period, the Group spent US$46.4 million on investment activities. This consisted of
US$31.4 million spent on the construction of new wells, US$12.0 million on infrastructure-related capital
expenditures, US$2.0 million on the purchase of intangible and other assets and US$1.0 million in capitalised
staff costs.

The Group received loan proceeds of US$9z.1 million from Otkritie and Trust, repaid US$4.0 million in
principal and paid US$17.2 million in interest. Additionally, the Group paid US$23.7 million of accrued
interest on shareholders loans.

Cash balances at the end of the period were US$7.6 million compared to US$7.5 million at the end of 2015.

Financing of Ruspetro’s current operations and future development

The Group seeks to raise additional development funding during the next twelve months from a major
investor. This will be further assisted by the planned raising in 2017 of additional trade finance lines from its
offtake customers,

Under the loan facilities from Otkritie and Trust Bank, the Group must achieve certain annualised production
targets that are tested quarterly from 1 January 2016. Starting from 1 July 2016 the Group is in the breach of
certain covenants, but obtained waivers from its lenders to avoid acceleration of the debt repayment schedule.

Furthermore, in December 2016 the Group concluded an addendum to the Makayla loan agreement
rescheduling the principal and acerued interest payments in several parts, with US$2.0 million semi-annual
payments due in 2017 and 2018 and the final settlement of US$15.8 million in May of 2019.

At the period end, the Group had US$18.6 million of undrawn facilities available from Otkritie, the Group
seeks to raise additional development funding from a major investor and is confident that it will, during the
course of 2017, secure further domestic and export trade financing prepayment facilities as necessary.
However, as this is not certain the Directors recognise that this represents a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Taking into account all considerations relevant to the Group’s financial position, management considers it
appropriate that the Group’s financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.

Ruspetro Limuted
ol Bopert an 1 huocounts 2066 3
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties highlighted below are considered to be the most significant factors
giving rise to a potential impact on the Group’s business integrity, financial results and future prospects at its
current stage of development. Not all of these risk factors are within the Group’s control, directly and
indirectly, and the list is not exhaustive. It is reasonable to presume the existence of certain risks that are
unknown to us and therefore the list may change. Certain risks are outside the Group's control, for example:
changes in global and domestic economic conditions (including energy prices), currency and base lending rate
fluctuations, and socio-political and macroeconomic factors. Our approach is to actively understand and
monitor the Group’s exposure, and then manage those risks by applying a practical and flexible framework of
measures which provide a consistent and sustainable approach to risk assessment, so that, where possible,

potential adverse effects are managed and the impact on the Group’s business mitigated.

The Group's risk assessment table is presented below.

A 4

Likelihood
gy
4
7]

Insignificant

BN o a0

[y

Impact

Minor Moderate

Major Catastrophic

Key risks and uncertainties are summarised in a table below.

Impact

Risk mitigation

Proposed

Low oil prices have a The Group uses a scenario-
significant impact on the based approach to forecasting,
Group's financial incorporating global oil price
performance and cash forecasts, when determining its
0il price generation. A sustained key performance indicators
a ecge ases to period of low oil prices may  depending on oil prices on the
US$30/bbl and coniribute to valuation globg] market. The Group Likelihood: 3
low oil price impairment, potentially monitors the cost- benefits of - MEDIUM
environment impacting the Group"s hedging products, a5 a . Impact: 4
ersists in the ability to generate adequate component of total production.
Ene divm term funds for the long-term This approach helps the Group
capital investment required  determine allocation of funding
to sustain the production to optimise execution of the
growth necessary tomeet business plan and to minimise
its primary lender’s the principal risk of covenant
covenants default.
"7 Awcakening of the Russian
- Ruble red‘:(;ues theGroup's  The majority of the Group's
. net book value, expressed in - o ing expenses, a large ’
¢ US Dollars, and key ; e of 8GA expenses, ;
. " liquidity ratios whu:hbycan ' and domestic capital C
Ruble * lead o a perception ' contracts are S es .
. devalugtion to | current and potential denominated in Rubles, whilst Likelthood: 3
., 70RUR per ! lenders of a high credit risk, | export reverntnes are US Dollar Fmpact:
' US$ orbelow  : concentrated with its based. A weak Ruble, while pact:3 MEDIUM
fender. Thisean impacungonﬂleGm\lpsUS
" lead to pressure on lending . Dollar denominated balance -
. rate negotiatious and sheet, benefits the Group’s cost
" exposure to an increasein base and cash flow ,
the Group’s cost of capital,
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Proposed
Gradi

Risk niitigation

Changes in tax
and customs
regulations

Sanction non-

The Group'’s profitability

and cash generation would
be adversely impacted by
increases in rates of
taxation across the Russian
and UK tax spectrums. This

- includes any unexpected,
. unfavourable changes in

rates of tax and duty,
cancellation of preferential
customs duty reliefs or loss
of legislated fiscal
stirnulation measures
currently available to the
Group

’ 'IhefaﬂureoftheGmupto
. comply with varicus

mandatory sanctiong weuld
potentially lead to the

\ Group closely monitors tax

and customs regulation
changes, engages in ongoing
dialogue with relevant
ministries of the Russian
government on the current and
future tax regime, and
continually assesses the impact
of any prospective changes on
its business planning. The
Group benefits from the
stability of certain tax breaks
mandated for fixed periods of
10-15 years, which limit tax
exposure within the Group’s
horizon.

Procurement of most of the

‘mntenalsmachmery

- Group being deprived of the :
, ability to interact with the

' governments of the U.8. or

. EU or their agencies; the |

prosecution of the Group
and/or its employees, the
Group being exposed to

. slgmﬁunt fines and/ar

eqmpment within the Group’s
operations, directly or provided -

- by key contractors, is sourced
. domestically or from non-

sanctioned jurisdictions.

' Eﬂxﬂqgmnmdomamfor

exposure, under

potential D
. advice from in-house and
' external counsel before the
| Group enters into contracts.

. Likelihood: 1
. Impact: 4

Likelihood: 3

MEDIUM

Impact: 4

f
;-‘

Compliance
with debt
facility
covenants

Debt facility agreements
with principal lenders
contain triggers should the
Group breach target
production output
covenants. Certain rights
are triggered if the Group’s
rolling annual production

. falls below target by 25% in

any quarter, and if
production remains more

" than 25% below target for a

second consecutive quarter,
including the right to
demand accelerated loan
repayments, and to change
key management by the
lender unless agreed
measures are taken to
resolve the issues. The same
rights may be triggered if
production is more than
45% below target fora
single quarter.

. production, operating

_ revenues and cash flow. An

The Group renegotiated its
loan eovenants, eliminating the
EBITDA covenant, and
reducing the production output

" covenants to levels related to

the Group’s current
development plan. The Group's
medium-term planning model
evaluates projected cash and
debt facilities, against the
levels of investment in
development expenditure

" required to deliver the

necessary growth in output to
meet production covenants.
The Group is able to stress the
model for key sensitivities, and
identifies key actions required
at the planning stage to
maxirmize production output
from existing and new wells.

The Group has recognised that

- limited fanding sources are
. availahble to jt as a listed public

company, and has delisted its

" shares and re-register as &

¢ private limited company. The

Group will continne to draw
down remaining fonds from its
development facility, utilise
trade finance, and evaluate
alternative sources of hew

funding.

Likelihood: 3

Impact: 5
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Proposed
Gradi

Risk mitigation

' 2010 breach

Short-term
liquidity risk

Inability to manage short-
term cash facilities may
lead to insufficient funding
1o pay employees, suppliers
and other creditors as hills
fall due. Extension of credit
periods beyond agreed
terms may affect the
Group’s creditworthiness,
impacting on the Group’s
ability to procure goods and
services at optimal prices
and secure frade credit on
normal business terms

. additional working cost, or

Production
deviates from
forecast by
significant
margin

breach of permitting.

The Group's long-term
production forecast is based
on a field development plan
linked to its resources base.
The long-term production
forecast relies on
probahilistic assumptions
to estimate recoverable
volumes. There is an
inherent degree of
uncertainty in the
information used in the
Group’s planning and
execution which may lead

" tolower than forecast

production volumes,
potentially impacting on
revenue, cash generation
and meeting covenants.

) lheG:mpiswhjeﬂtmthe

United Kingdom Bribery

* Act 2010, Failore to comply

Group and/or its officers to

- corporate and personal

" liability. It may farther
- harm the Group's

Insurance
event

reputation and have a
material adverse effect on
the Group's business.

The Group may not be able
to obtain insurance
underwriting covering
certain risks typically
subject to cover, for a
business of comparable size
and nature, in more
developed countries. A
significant uninsured event

" eould expose the Group to

unquantifiable liability, and
any subsequent claim or
loss materially may impact
on the Group’s assets and
business.

" contractors capable of meeting

: the Group's exacting policies

¢ and standards. Engi

i gubsurface, HSE, and drilling

. and completion

* that the performance of

{ contractors is propedy
monitored, managed and

* and corruption in any form by
. all employees. A

* whistleblowing policy and '
" hotline facility is in placefor |
. employees to anonymously

" report any coneerns.

" The Group has development

facilities with its primary
lenders to finance current
exploration and development
commitments. The Group
manages other liquidity risk by
maintaining cash and
committed credit facilities in
line with rolling short-term
free cash flow forecasts,

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 4

’ The Company has
. implemented rigorous

procedures for the selection of
. Likelthood: 3

teams ensure Impact: 4

adhering to contract.

Internationally proven
appraisal and development
techniques are utilised to
maximise the economically
recoverable hydrocarbons for
our reservoirs and rigorous
probabilistic methodologies are
in place for reserves
assessment. Appropriately
risked production forecasting
methodology is in place for
forecasting and modelling
purposes.

Likelihood: 3

Impact: 5

. International policies based on .

. the United Kingdom Bribery
Act 2010 are in place and the

5 Cumpany:sﬁ)msadon

! reguolations therennder )
could potentially expase the

their implementation. |

ensuning ; .
The Gmup prohibits bribery " Likelihood: 2

 Impact: 4

' The Group has used the

services of specialist insurance
advisors to put in place
maximum available insurance
coverage appropriate to the
sector and geographical
location in which the Group
operates, to minimise wherever
possible any exposure to
uninsured events. Management
regularly reviews insurance
coverage for any change in the
business operating
environment.

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 4

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM
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" Either the inability of the

. Groupto extend its
production and appraisal

- licences, orits suffering a

; licence suspension,
restriction or termination
would have a material

. adverse effect pn the

Loss of licence

In the normal course of
business, accidents may
oceur, leading to serious
consequences such as
injuries, loss of life, fires or
explosions, and the loss of
certain operating facilities,
i which can lead to business
.. 1 disruption, associated loss
Safety incident i of production, and financial
i exposure to compensation
/claims, regulatory fines
and penalties. A safety
incident may impact on the
! Group’s reputation as a safe
i gperator, and its ability to

i contractually enforce its
olicies with contractors

t

Incompliance

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Alexander Chistyakov

Executive Chairman
24 April 2017

Risk
essment

Proposed
Grading

Risk mitigation

ASS

. The Group has renewed all of

' obligation management team is

- obligations are routinely

¢ gystem is being implemented to .
further mitigate such risks.

its licenses for the economic

life of field. A dedicated licence

Likelihood: 2
in place to cover such risks. .
Matters related to licence Impact: 5 . ‘
reviewed at the Group's Andit .

Comzmittee mectings

! The Group strives to provide a

safe working environment in
order to avoid any incidents or
fatalities in its operations.
Great attention is paid to
compliance with the Group's
safety regulations which are
designed on a best HSE
practices basis. Safety threats
are under regular supervision
and control. Field site security
has been further strengthened
in 2016,

Likelihood: 3
MEDiIUM

Impact: 3

. promoting a strong culture of
- environmental awareness and

ty in all its 3 MEDIUM

irilling waste management . Impact: 3
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report on the affairs of Ruspetro Limited (hereinafter referred to “the Company”)
and its subsidiary undertakings (together referred to as “the Group™), together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

General informaton

The Company {Registered number 1157746595929) acts as the holding company of the Group. The Group has
two operating companies, Open Joint Stock Company INGA (“OJSC INGA”) and Open Joint Stock Company
Trans-oil (*OJSC Trans-oil”) which own the Group’s licences. Details on the Group companies are presented
below.

Ruspeiro Limited (parent and ultimate parent of the Group)
Country of Incorporation  United Kingdom

Registered Office International House, 24 Holborn Viaduct, London EC1A 2BN England, UK
Private Company Limited R tro Holding Limi

Country of Incorporation  Republic of Cyprus

Registered Office Naousis, 1, Karapatakis Building, Suite 2,4% floor, 6018, Larnaca, Cyprus
Rus) oint Stock Compan

Country of Incorporation  Russian Federation

Registered Office Leningradsky pr. 37A bldg. 4 Moscow, Russia, 125167

GA n Joint St
Country of Incorporation  Russian Federation

. Roznina str., 146/2, Khanty-Mansiysk city, Khanty-Mansiysk autonomous
Registered Office okrug, 628012, Russia

il n Joint S Comy
Country of Incorporation  Russian Federation

. Roznina str., 146/2, Khanty-Mansiysk city, Khanty-Mansiysk autonomous
Registered Office okrug, 628012, Russia

Resulls and dividends

The Group made a Joss after taxation of $19.¢ million (2015: loss of $99.1 million) which has been added to
the accumulated loss. The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out on
pages 12-48. The Company has not declared any dividends during the year (2015: $nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

Future developments
Information regarding future developments of the company is presented in the Strategic Report.

Going concern

The Board regularly reviews operating cash flow projections and scenario sensitivities including, but not
limited to, changes in production rates, commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuation, and the
Group’s exploration and production development plan.

The Group seeks to raise additional development funding during the next twelve months from a new strategic
investor, which will be preceded by a series of bridge loans from shareholders, and a reduction of $92 million
of shareholder loans to Inderbit and Makayla via forgiveness.

In addition, during the reporting period, the Group signed and drew down a RURy50 million
(US$11.3 millien) and a RUR350 million {US$5.7 million} domestic oil sales prepayment facility with LLC
EnergoResurs (“EnergoResurs”, a Glencore subsidiary), and a US$10.0 millicn export prepayment oil sale
facility with Glencore Energy UK Ltd (*Glencore™). Prepayments from forward oil sale agreements are one of
the principal sources of working capital. The renewal of such prepayments cccurs regularly in the normal
course of business, but cannot be certain. In addition, new strategic investment cannot be certain and,
therefore, the Directors recognise that this represents a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

On the basis of the assumptions and cash flow forecasts prepared, in the opinion of management, the Group
will continue to operate within both available and prospective facilities. Accordingly, the Group financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any adjustments that would be required
in the event that the Group were no longer able to meet its liabilities as they falt due.

Ruspetio Limunted 8
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Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing of the balance sheet were:

Alexander Chistyakov Executive Chairman (appointed 2 December 2011)

John Conlin Chief Executive Officer (appointed Chief Executive Officer 17 December 2013,
resigned 15 January 2017, appointed Non-Executive Director 16 January 2017}

Kirill Androsov Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 August 2013)

Mark Pearson Non-Executive Director (appointed 29 April 2014}

Robert Jenkins Non-Executive Director (appointed 2 December 2011, resigned 5 May 2016)

Franky Monstrey Non-Executive Director {appointed 1 August 2013, resigned 5 May 2016)

Maurice Dijols Non-Executive Director {appointed 6 November 2013, resigned 5 May 2016)

Sergey Gordeev Non-Executive Director (appointed 3 February 2015, resigned 9 June 2016)

Trakli Chichua Non-Executive Director (appointed g June 2016)

Igor Miletenko Non-Executive Director (appointed 9 June 2016)

No Director had a material interest in any significant coniract, other than a service contract or contract for
services, with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies at any time during the year.

On 26 March 2017 we have been notified by one of the company’s Directors, Mr. John Conlin, about transfer
of his 46 164 shares in the company to his son, Mr. Peter Conlin. Other than that we do not have any
information about change in directors’ interests.

Emplovee involvement

During the year, the policy of providing employees with comprehensive information about the Group has been
continued with employees encouraged to present their suggestions and view of the Company’s performance.
Our Company intranet is systematically updated to contain up-to-date information regarding the Company’s
operating, financing, corporate, and other developments. Regular meetings were held between local
management and employees to allow a free flow of information and ideas.

The Group gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the
requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by a handicapped or disabled person.

Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s policy wherever practicable to provide
continuing employment under normal terms and conditions and to provide training and career development
and promotion wherever appropriate.

Directors’ iiklemnities

The Company has purchased and maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities. In addition, the Company has entered into deeds of indemnity (which are qualifying third-party
indemnity provisions under the Companies Act 2006 {the ‘Act’) with each Director of the Company and the
former Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2015, to the extent permitted by law and
by the Company’s Articles, in respect of all liabilities incurred in connection with the performance of their
duties as a Director of the Company or its subsidiaries. The indemnities are available for inspection at the
Company’s registered office.

Share capital

The issued share capital of Ruspetro Ltd as at 31 December 2016 was comprised of 870,112,016 ordinary
shares of 10 pence each. The Company issued no new shares during the year or up to the date of this report.
The Company does not hold any shares in treasury. Details of the Company’s issued share capital are set out
in Note 19 to the financial statements.

No securities exist which carry special rights as to their transfer or control of the Company.

At the 2015 Annual General Meeting, the Company was authorised by shareholders to repurchase up to
87,011,200 of its own ordinary shares, representing 10% of its issued share capital as at the date of that
meeting. No buyback programme has taken place to date.

Substantial interests
As at 31 December 2016 and 4 April 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to of this report, the
Company had been notified of the following substantizl interests in its Shares:

Name Number of % of Shares as Number of % of Shares as
Shares as at at 31.12.2016 Shares as at at 04.04.2017
21.12.2016 04.04.2017

Limolines Transport Limjted 155,555,832 17.88% 155,555,832 17.88%

Alexander Chistyakov*® 136,633,213 15.70% 136,633,213 15.70%

Otkritie Holding JSC 130,516,802 15.00% 130,516,802 15.00%

Mc Inversion JSC 86,906,141 9.99% 86,906,141 9.99%

Forcar Holdings Limited 77,284,849 8.88% 77,284,849 8.88%

Makayla Investments Limited 76,630,306 8.81% 76,630,306 8.81%

Conchetta Consultants Limited 66,875,000 7.69% 66,875,000 7.69%
*Indirect Holding

Ruspetio Linuted
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Dircetons” Report

Shareholders’ rights
The Company’s Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’) set out the rights and obligations of shareholders.

Any amendment to the Articles may be made by special resolution of the sharehoiders being a resolution
approved by not Jess than 75% majority of those voting on the resolution.

Significant agreements — Change of control
There are no arrangements, which if operated at a later date, may result in a change of control of the
Company.

Diversity

The Board continues to be supportive of providing equal opportunities in recruitment and succession
planning at all levels of the business. The Company seeks to identify applicants from a wide experience and
backgrounds and operates equal opportunity policies in all areas of its activities with the aim of creating a
diverse pool of talent from which to recruit future senior positions.

Financial instruments

The Company’s use of financial instruments, together with objectives and policies on financial risk and
exposure to foreign currency, credit, commodity, liguidity and interest rate risk can be found in Note 25 to the
financial statements.

Transactions with related parties
Details of the Group’s transactions with related parties are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Post balance sheet events
All significant events after the balance sheet date of 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements,

Disclosure of information to the external auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined in Section 418(2) of the Act) of which
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”), the Company’s auditor, is unaware; and each Director has taken all the
steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

PwC has indicated its willingness to continue in office. Resclutions to re-appoint PwC as the Company’s
auditor and to authorise the Directors to determine the auditor’s remuneration will be proposed at the
2017 AGM.

By order of the Board

=

Alexander Chistvakov
Executive Chairman
24 April 2017
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Group and those of the Company in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union ("EU’") and
applicable law.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of their profit or loss for
that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent financial statements respectively; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's and the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregnlarities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report that complies with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of cur knowledge:

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

» the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and

e the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board

S~

Alexander Chistyakov
Executive Chairman
24 April 2017

Ruospetro Limited
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ruspetro

Limited

Report on the Group financial
statements

In our opinion, Ruspetro Limited’s Group financial
statements (the “financial statements™):

e give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of
its loss and cash flows for the year then ended ;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union;
and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

.

In forming our opinion on the financial statements,
which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2 to the financial
statements concerning the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. This ability is dependent on whether the
Group can obtain additional financing for the purposes of
working capital and investment in field development, and
on the Group meeting the production targets included in
the covenants attached to its bank borrowings as well as
on the creditors not elaiming immediate debt repayment
due to non-compliance with covenants. These conditions,
along with the other matters explained in note 2 to the
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to conttinue as a going concern. The
financial statements do not include the adjustments that
would result if the Group was unable to continue as a
going concern.

SRR FT S S PN P
The financial statements, included within the Annual
Report and Accounts {the “Annual Repert”), comprise:

s the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 December 2016;

¢ the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income for the year
then ended;

« the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended;

» the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the financial staternents is IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, and applicable law.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the
Directors have made a number of subjective judgements,
for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates. In making such estimates, they have made
assumptions and considered future events.

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and

s  the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we are required to report if we have
identified any material misstatements in the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report. We have nothing to
report in this respect.

Other matters on which we are
required to report by exception

N - L) g t- - - L aTe e L tan L
R PR B L AT o

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility.

TTLOE Tty

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’

remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the
financial statements and the
audit

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 11, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view.

Ruspetro Linnled
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ruspetro

Limited (continued)

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)™). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Parent company’s members as a body
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assumnie responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or inte whase hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK &
Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

s  whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Group’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

« the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors; and

e the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing
the Directors’ judgements against available evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements,

‘We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and nen-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether those
reports inchude the disclosures required by applicable
legal requirements.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent company
financial statements of Ruspetro Limited for the year
ended 31 December 2016. That report includes an
emphasis of matter.

oL c@7

Kevin Reynard (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Aberdeen

25 April 2017

s The maintenance and integrity of the Ruspetro
Limited website is the responsibility of the
Directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the anditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the website.

» Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Raspetro Linnterd
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Consoiidated Finaneial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2016
(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2016 2015
Revenue 7 43,992 43,875
Cost of sales 8 (57.188) (53,856)
Gross loss (13,196) (9,981)
Selling and administrative expenses 9 (14,669) (15,585)
Other operating expenses, net (795) (60)
Operating loss (28,660) (25,626)
Finance costs 10 (31,233) (24.668)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 20 47,723 (57,221)
Other expenses, net 11 (2,659) {1,210)
Loss before income tax (14,829) (108,725)
Income tax {(expense)/benefit 12 (5,067) 9,591
Loss for the period {19,896) (99,134)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be
reclassified subsequently to income/(loss), net of
income tax
Exchange difference on translation to presentation currency 4,848 (16,558)
Total comprehensive loss for the period {15,048) (115,692)

The entire amount of loss and total comprehensive loss for the period are atiributable to equity heolders
of the Company

Loss per share
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share (US$) 26 (0.02) (0.11)
P M,
T 7
Alexander Chistyakov Alexander Betsky
Executive Chairmran Finance Director

Huspetro Lunited
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Consolidated Finaneal Statonents

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2016
(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

31 December

Notes 2016 2015
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 190,641 130,978
Mineral rights and other intangibles 14 216,002 179,833
Deferred tax assets 12 2,326 7,764
408,969 318,575
Carrent assets
Inventories 15 1,845 1,445
Trade and other receivables 16 11,639 5,836
Income tax prepayment 3 16
Other corrent assets 17 1,655 2,533
Cash and cash equivalents 18 7,554 7,511
22,696 17,341
Total assets 431,665 335,916
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 19 135,493 135,493
Share premium 389,558 389,558
Retained loss (548,782) (528,886)
Exchange difference on translation to
presentation currency (56,666) (61,514)
Other reserves 25,397 25,397
Total equity (55,000) (39,952)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 382,789 282,544
Provision for dismantlement 21 11,496 5,707
Deferred tax liabilities 12 44,207 38,625
438,492 326,876
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 4,805 24,882
Trade and other payables 22 39,959 22,727
Taxes payable other than income tax 2,867 1,375
Other current liabilities 542 8
48,173 48,992
Total liabilities 486,665 375,868
Total equity and liabilities 431,665 335,916
Alexander Chistyakov Alexander Betsky
Executive Chairman Finanee Dirertor

Ruspeteo Limited 1=
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Consohdated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 3t December 2016
(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at 1 January 2015

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive loss for the
period

Total comprehensive loss for the
period

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Balance as at 1 January 2016

Loss for the pertod

Other comprehensive income far the
period

Total comprehensive loss for the
period

Balance as at 31 December 2016

Exchange

difference on

translation to
Share Share Retained presentation Other Total
capital premium earnings currency reserves equity
135,493 389,558 {429,752) {44,956) 25,397 75,740
- - (99,134) - - (99,134}
- - - (16,558) - (16,558}
- - (99,134) (16,558) - (115,692)
135,493 389,558 (528,886) (61,514) 25,397 (39,952)
135,493 389,558 (528,886) (61,514) 25,397 (39,952)
- - {19,896) - - (19,896)
- - - 4,848 - 4,848
- - (19,896) 4,848 - (15,048)
135.493 389,558 {548,782) {56,666) 25,397 (55,000)

pr -

Alexander Chistvakov
Executive Chairman

T

et

Alexander Betsky

Finance Director

Ruspetrs Limited
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Consoliduted Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Finance costs
Impairment of financial instruments
Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Insurance claim settlement
Operating cash flows before working capital
adjustments

Working capital adjustments:
Change in trade and other receivables
Change in inventories
Change in trade and other payables
Change in other taxes receivable/payable
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Net cash used in investing acHivities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loans and borrowings

Repayments of loans and borrowings

Interest paid

Other financing charges paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

>

stated)

Year ended 31 December

Notes 2016 2015
(14,829) {(108,725)

13, 14 28,501 28,193
20 {47,723) 57,221
10 31,233 24,668
11 1,655 1,869
13 1,078 -
11 - (1,800)
(85) 1,426

(579) (601}

(98) (1,182)

3,410 (4,647)

{2,488) 340

160 {4,664)

(46,437} (35,225)

(46.437) (35,225)

20 92,115 59,585
20 (4,008) (3,655)
20, 24 (40,940) (19,307)
{333) (1,727}

46,834 34,896

557 (4,993)

(514) 482

7,511 12,022

7554 7,511

M,

Alexander Chistvakov
Executive Chairman

: 4

Alexander Betsky
Finunce Direetor
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanaal Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2010
{all tabular amounts are in USS thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
The consolidated financial statements of Ruspetro Limited (the ‘Company’ or ‘Ruspetro’) and its subsidiaries, together
referred to as ‘the Group’ for the year ended 31 December 2016 were approved by its Board of Directors on 24 April 2017.

The Company was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 20 October 2011 as a public company under the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, On 6 June 2016 Ruspetro delisted from the London Stock Exchange and registered as a private
company. The Company’s registered office is International House, 24 Holborn Viaduct, City of London, London EC1A
2BN, United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Group are exploration for and production of crude oil. The operating subsidiaries of the
Group — OJSC INGA and 0OJSC Trans-oil (hereinafter referred to as INGA and Trans oil respectively) hold three licences
for exploration for, and extraction of, erude oil and natural gas in the Khanty-Mansiysk region of the Russian Federation.

Details of subsidiaries consolidated within the Group are as follows:

Effective
. Country of Year of -
Company B ness incorpo- Registered office address incorpo ownership
activity ration —ration 31 December
2016 2015
Ruspetro . . Naousis, 1, Karapatakis building,
Holding Holding Republicof g ;10 2, 4TH floor 6018, Larnaca, 2007 100% 100%
Limited Company T Cyprus
Ruspetro JSC . .
. . Russian Leningradsky pr. 37A bldg.4
(ﬁﬁggi:go Crude oil sale Federation Moscow, Russia, 125167 2005 100%  100%
. Roznina St., 146/2, Khanty-
Exploration and . . : A
. Russian Mansiysk city, Khanty-Mansiysk
INGA pmd“g““ﬁ of Federation autonomous ol 1998 100% 100%
rude o Russia, 628012
. Roznina St., 146/2, Khanty-
Exploration and . . : '
. . Russian Mansiysk city, Khanty-Mansiysk
Trans-oil produé:;lgﬁ of Federation autonomous okrug 2001 100%  100%

Russia, 628012

2. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union. The consolidated financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost convention, modified for fair values under IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars (US$) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand unless otherwise indicated.

Going concern
These consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

At 31 December 2016 the Group reported net current liabilities of US$25,477 thousand (2015: US$31,651 thousand),
which included eash in bank of US$7,554 thousand (2015: US$7,511 thousand). The Group had positive operating cash
flow of US$160 thousand in the reporting period (2015: negative US$4,664 thousand).

The Group’s continuing operations are dependent upon its ability to make further investments in field development in
order to grow its hydrocarbon production and sales. In the short term, this field development is planned to involve, in
particular, the drilling of a number of horizontal wells, the success of which will only be known with certainty once each
well is completed. In the light of these results, the nature and extent of the Group’s drilling programme may change over
time, with a consequent change in investment requirements.

Accordingly, the ability of the Group to generate sufficient cash from operations may be materially affected by the results
of the Group’s current appraisal activity and the success of future drilling activities, as well as by a number of economic
factors to which the Group’s financial forecasts are particularly sensitive, such as crude oil prices, the level of inflation in
Russia, and foreign exchange rates.

The Group finances its exploration and development activities using a combination of cash in hand, operating cash flow
generated mainly from the sale of crude oil production, prepayments from forward oil sale agreements and additional
debt or equity financing. The Group plans to raise additional financing during the next twelve months, but the success of
such fundraising cannot be guaranteed.

Ruspetro Linuted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Pecember 2016
{alltabular amounis are m US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The credit facilities obtained from Otkeitie and Trust contain certain covenants, including production volume targets,
which the Group needs to meet to avoid aceeleration of the debt repayment schedule. Starting from the 1 July 2016 the
Group was in the breach of certain covenants, and obtained respective waivers from the creditors (see Note 20 and
Note 27) to remedy these breaches for all periods when the covenants were breached, except for the four quarters ending
on 3t March 2017.

Despite the fact that Otkritie and Trust have not formally waived their right to demand early repayment of their loans in
connection with the last production covenants test date of 1 April 2017, and the creditors have a formal right to demand
repayment, the management of the Group believes that the creditors will not exercise their right to demand early
repayment of the debt.

Currently, the Group has launched a structured effort to identify a strategic investor(s} either at the corporate level or at
the asset level to finance the Group’s long-term development plans. The creditor representatives of the Board are
supportive of this process, with a positive development being supportive ensuring timely fulfilment of the Group’s
obligations under the current loan agreements.

In addition, during the reporting period, the Group obtained Russian ruble (“RUR") 750,000 thousand
(US$11,349 thousand} and RUR 350,000 thousand (US$5,684 thousand) as forward oil sale prepayment from LLC
EnergoResurs (“EnergoResurs”) and US$10,000 thousand from Glencore Energy UK Lid. (“Glencore”) (see Note 22).
Prepayments from forward oil sale agreements are one of the main sources of working capital. The renewal of such
prepayments occurs regularly under normal course of business, but cannot be certain and, therefore, the Directors
recognise that this, together with the ongoing need to raise finance and comply with production covenants, represents a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

However, on the basis of the assumptions and cash flow forecasts prepared management has assumed that the Group will
continue to operate within both available and prospective facilities. Accordingly, the Group consolidated financial
statements are prepared on the going concern basis and do not include any adjustments that would be required in the
event that the Group were no longer able to meet its labilities as they fall due.

3. Summary of significant aceounting policies

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those investees, including structured entities, that the Group controls because the Group (i) has power to
direct the relevant activities of the investees that significantly affect their returns, (ii) has exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involverment with the investees, and (iii) has the ability to use its power over the investees to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
and are no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary accounting policies for subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies,

Oil and natural gas exploration, evaluation and development expeaditure

0il and gas exploration activities are accounted for in a manner similar to the successful efforts method. Costs of
successful development and exploratory wells are capitalised.

Exploration expenditure

Geological and geophysical exploration costs are charged against income as incurred. Costs directly associated with an
exploration well are capitalised within other intangible assets until the drilling of the well is complete and the results
have been evaluated. If hydrocarbons are not found, the exploration expenditure is written off as a dry hole.

When proved reserves of oil and natural gas are determined and development is sanctioned, the relevant expenditure is
transferred to property, plant and equipment (oil and gas properties).

Pevelopment costs

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and
the drilling of development wells, including unsuccessful development or delineation wells, is capitalised within oil and
gas properties.

Property, plant and equipment, Mineral rights and other intangibles

Oil and gas properties and other property, plant and equipment, including mineral rights are stated at cost, less
accumulated depletion, depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset into operation, the initial estimate of the decommissioning obligation, and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs.
The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given
to acquire the asset,

Ruspetsa Lisnated 1
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation and Depletion
Oil and gas properties are depleted on a unit-of-production basis over proved developed reserves of the field concerned,
except in the case of assets whose useful life is shorter than the lifetime of the field, in which case the straight-line
method depreciation is applied. Mineral rights are depleted on the unit-of-production basis over proved and probable
reserves of the relevant area.

Other property, plant and equipment are generally depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

____Yyears
Buildings and constructions 30-50
Other property, plant and equipment 1-6

Major maintenance and repairs

Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs comprises the cost of replacement assets or parts of assets,
inspection costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately depreciated and is now written
off is replaced and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group, the
expenditure is capitalised. Where part of the asset was not separately considered as a component, the replacement value
is used to estimate the carrying amount of the replaced assets which is immediately written off. Inspection costs
associated with major maintenance programs are capitalised and amortised over the period to the next inspection. All
other maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets include computer software.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on
a straight-line basis over their useful lives, except for mineral rights that are depleted on the unit-of-production basis as
explained above.

Impairment of assets
The Group monitors internal and external indicators of impairment relating to its tangible and intangible assets.

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use (VIU) calculations and fair values less costs to sell (FVLCS). These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the oil price assumption may change which may then impact the
estimated life of the field and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of long-term assets.

Given the shared infrastructure and interdependency of cash flows related to the three licences the Group holds, the
assets are considered to represent one Cash Generating Unit (CGU), which is the lowest level where largely independent
cash flows are deemed to exist.

Operating leases

Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are charged to profit or loss for the year on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the
asset together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to lease the asset, with or without
further payment, when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option.

Share option plan

The share option plan, under which the Group has the ability to choose whether to settle it in cash or equity instruments
at the discretion of the Board of Directors is accounted for as an equity settled transaction. The fair value of the options
granted by the Company to employees is measured at the grant date and calculated using the Trinomial option pricing
model and recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a component of equity with a corresponding amount
recognised in selling, general and administrative expenses over the time share reward vest to the employee.

Modifications of the terms or conditions of the equity instruments granted in a manner that reduces the totai fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement or is not otherwise beneficial to the employee, are accounted for as services
received in consideration for the equity instraments granted as if the modification had not occurred.

Financial instroments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial assets or liabilities.

Financial assets within the scope of International Accounting Standard (TIAS) 39 are classified as either financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity investments, or available for sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial instruments carried on the consolidated statement of financial position include loans and receivables, cash and
cash equivalent balances, borrowings, accounts payable and put options. The particular recognition and measurement
methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, After initial measurement loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment is recognised when there is an objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the loans and receivables. The amount of provision is the difference
between the assets’ carrying value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The change in the amount of the loan or receivable is recognised in profit or loss, Interest income is
recognised in profit or loss by applying the effective interest rate.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any.

Borrowings and uccounts payable
The Group’s financial liabilities are represented by accounts payable and borrowings.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method; any difference
between the initial fair value of the consideration received (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised as an adjustment to interest expense over the period of the borrowings.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of cne or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is determined on the weighted
average basis, The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw material, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling
expenses.

Provisions

Generul

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probabie that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can he made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using rates that
reflect, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as finance costs.

Provision for dismantlement

Provision for dismantlement is related primarily to the conservation and abandenment of wells, removal of pipelines and
other oil and gas facilities together with site restoration activities related to the Group’s licence areas. When a
constructive obligation to incur such costs is identified and their amount can be measured reliably, the net present value
of future decommissioning and site restoration costs is capitalised within property plant and equipment with a
corresponding liability. Provisions are estimated based on engineering estimates, licence and other statutory
requirements and practices adopted in the industry and are discounted tc net present value using discount rates
reflecting adjustments for risks specific to the obligation.

Adequacy of such provisions is periodically reviewed. Changes in provisions resulting from the passage of time are
reflected in profit or loss each year under finance costs. Other changes in provisions, relating to a change in the expected
pattern of settlement of the obligation, changes in the discount rate or in the estimated amount of the obligation, are
treated as a change in accounting estimate in the period of the change and are reflected as an adjustment to the provision
and a corresponding adjustment to property, plant and equipment. If a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying
amount of the asset, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{al] tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Taxes

Incame tax

The incore tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes calculated based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Current and deferred taxes are charged or credited to profit or
loss except where they are attributable to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
corresponding tax is also taken to equity.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable prefits or
losses for the current and prior periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred
taxes provide for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values
for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or carry forward losses can be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and liabilities, when deferred tax balances are referred to the same governmental body (i.e. federal, regional or local) and
the same subject of taxation and when the Group intends to perform an offset of its current tax assets and liabilities.

Value added tax

Russian Value Added Tax (VAT) at a standard rate of 18% is payable on the difference between output VAT on sales of
goods and services and recoverable input VAT charged by suppliers. Output VAT is charged on the earliest of the dates:
either the date of the shipment of goods (works, services) or the date of advance payment by the buyer. Input VAT could
be recovered when purchased goods (works, services) are accounted for and other necessary requirements provided by
the tax legislation are met.

VAT related to sales and purchases is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position on a gross basis and
disclosed separately as a current asset and Liability.

Mineral extraction tax

Mineral extraction tax (“MET”) on hydrocarbons, including natural gas and crude oil, is due on the basis of quantities of
natural resources extracted. Mineral extraction tax for erude oil is determined based on the volume produced per fixed
tax rate adjusted depending on the monthly average market prices of the Urals blend and the Russian ruble (RUR)/US$
exchange rate for the preceding month. The ultimate amount of the mineral extraction tax on crude oil depends also on
the depletion and geographic location of the oil field. Mineral extraction tax on gas condensate is determined based on a
fixed percentage from the value of the exiracted mineral resources. Mineral extraction tax is accrued as a tax on
production and recorded within cost of sales.

Equity

Share capltal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares and options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of shares issued or liabilities
extinguishment over the par value of shares issued is recorded as share premium.

Other reserves
Other reserves include a reserve on reorganisation of the Group, the amount of share options of shareholders and an
amount related to fair value of Directors’ options.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods provided or services rendered
less any trade discounts, VAT and similar sales-based taxes after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from sale of crude oil and gas condensate is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of this
transaction can be measured reliably. If the Group agrees to transport the goods to a specified location, revenue is
recognised when goods are passed to the customer at the designated location.

Other revenue is recognised in accordance with contract terms.

Interest income is accrued on a regular basis by reference to the outstanding principal amount and the applicable
effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanaal Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
(all tabular amounts are 1n US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated}

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under
construction are capitalised and added to the project cost during construction until such time the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use, i.e. when they are capable of production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a
project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available for a
short-term out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such short term
investments is also capitalised and deducted from the total capitalised borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable
to relevant general borrowings of the Group during the period. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss account as finance costs in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Wages, salaries, contributions to the Russian Federation state pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and
sick leave, bonuses are expensed as incurred.

Forewgn curreney translation

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognised in the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rate of exchange in effect at the end of the reporting period.

The US$ is the presentation currency of the Group and the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency
of subsidiaries operating in the Russian Federation is the RUR. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of each of the reporting periods.
Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions). All the resulting exchange differences are
recorded in other comprehensive income.

The US$ to RUR exchange rates were RUR60.66 and RUR72.88 as at 3t December 2016 and 32 December 2015,
respectively and the average exchange rates for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were RUR67.19 and
RURG61.29, respectively. The US$ to pounds sterling {£) exchange rates were £0.81 and £0.68 as at 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015, respectively and the average exchange rates for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
£0.74 and £0.65, respectively. The increase in the US$ to RUR exchange rate for the year ended 31 December 2016 has
resulted in a gain of US§47,723 thousand in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive loss
and an adjustment of US$4,848 thousand in other comprehensive loss (refer to Notes 13 and 14).

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
In the application of the Group’s acconnting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associjated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actval results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The most significant areas of accounting requiring the use of the Group’s management estimates and assumptions relate
to oil and gas reserves; useful economic lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment; impairment of
tangible assets; provisions for dismantlement; taxation and aflowances.

Subsoil lcences

The Group conducts operations under exploration and production licences which require minimum levels of capital
expenditure and mineral production, timely payment of taxes, provision of geological data to authorities and other such
requirements. The current periods of the Group’s licences expire between June 2034 and December 2165.

The Russian regulatory authorities exercise considerable discretion in issuing and renewing licences and in monitoring
licensees’ compliance with licence terms. The loss of licence would be considered a material adverse event for the Group.

It is management's judgement that each of the three licences held by the Group will be renewed for the economic lives of
the fields which are projected to be up to 2041. The appraised economic lives of the fields are used as the basis for
reserves estimation, depletion calculation and impairment analysis. In making this assessment, management considers
that the licence held by INGA will be further extended.

Useful econormuc lives of property, plant and equipment and mineral rights

Oil and gas propertics and imineral rights

The Group's oil and gas properties are depleted over the respective life of the oil and gas fields using the unit-of-
production method based on proved developed oil and gas reserves (Note 13). Mineral rights are depleted over the
respective life of the oil and gas fields using the unit-of-production method based on proved and prabable oil and gas
reserves (Note 14).

Reserves are determined using estimates of oil in place, recovery factors and future oil prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated}

When determining the life of the oil and gas field, assumptions that were valid at the time of estimation, may change
when new information becomes available. The factors that could affect the estimation of the life of an oil and gas field
include the following:

» changes of proved and probable oil and gas reserves;

o differences between actual commodity prices and commodity price assumptions used in the estimation of oil and gas
reserves;

« unforeseen operational issues; and

« changes in capital, operating, processing and reclamation costs, discount rates and foreign exchange rates possibly
adversely affecting the economic viability of oil and gas reserves.

Any of these changes could affect prospective depletion of mineral rights and oil and gas assets and their carrying value.

Other non-production wussets

Property, plant and equipment other than il and gas properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives (Note 13). At the end of each reporting period management reviews the appropriateness of the assets
usefi]l economie lives and residual values. The review is based on the enrrent condition of the assets, the estimated period
during which they will continue to bring economic benefit to the Group and their estimated residual value.

Estimation of ofl and gas reserves

Unit-of-production depreciation, depletion and amortisation charges are principally measured based on the Group’s
estimates of proved developed and proved and probable oil and gas reserves. Estimates of proved and probable reserves
are also used in determination of impairment charges and reversals. Proved and probable reserves are estimated by the
independent international reservoir engineers, by reference to available geological and engineering data, and only
include volumes for which access to market is assured with reasonable certainty.

Information about the carrying amounts of oil and gas properties and the depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charged is provided in Notes 13 and 14.

Estimates of oil and gas reserves are inherently imprecise, require the application of judgements and are subject to
regular revision, either upward or downward, based on new mformation such as from the drilling of additional wells,
observation of long-term reservoir performance under producing conditions and changes in economic factors, including
product prices, contract terins or development plans. Changes to the Group’s estimates of proved and probable reserves
affect prospectively the amounts of depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged and, consequently, the carrying
amounts of mineral rights and oil and gas properties.

Were the estimated proved reserves to differ by 10% from management’s estimates, the impact on depletion would be as
follows:

Effect on loss before tax for the

Increase/decrease in reserves estimation year ended 31 December
2016 2015

+10% (2,591} (2.563)

- 10% 3,167 3:133

Provision for dismantlement

The Group has a constructive obligation to recognise a provision for dismantlement for its oil and gas assets (Note 21).
The fair values of these obligations are recorded as liabilities on a discounted basis, which is typically at the time when
assets are installed. The Group performs analysis and makes estimates in order to determine the probability, iming and
amount involved with prebable required outflow of resources. Estimating the amounts and timing of such dismantlement
costs requires significant judgement. The judgement is based on cost and engineering studies using currently available
technology and is based on current environmental regulations. Provision for dismantlement is subject to change because
of change in laws and regulations, and their interpretation.

Estimated dismantlement costs, for which the outflow of resources is determined to be probable, are recognised as a
provision in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-current assets

The Group accounts for the impairment of non-current assets in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. Under
IAS 36, the Group is required to assess the conditions that could cause assets to become impaired and to perform a
recoverability test for potentially impaired assets held by the Group. These conditions include whether a significant
decrease in the market value of the assets has occurred, whether changes in the Group’s business plan for the assets have
been made or whether a significant adverse change in the business envircnment has arisen.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 the economy was negatively impacted by a number of factors including but not
limited to low prices of oil. This has resulted in a review of the Group’s non-current assets (Oil and Gas properties and
Mineral Rights) to determine whether they are impaired as at the reporting date.

The recoverable amount was estimated using the value in use approach. The models developed by management to
calculate value in use involved assumptions as to future hydrocarbon prices, taxes, production volumes, and inflation.
The models also use estimates of proved developed reserves at 31 December 2016 as calculated by the management of the
Group. Estimated cash flows were discounted with a risk adjusted discount rate derived as the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC). For the Group’s businesses the pre-tax nominal discount rate is estimated at 15.3 percent
(2015: 15.2 percent).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Based on the impairinent analysis performed, management does not consider that the Group’s non-current assets are
impaired as at 31 December 2016.

Assumptions used in developing cash flow forecasts of the Group

Assumption 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Average crude oil price US$55 in 2017, US$61 in 2018, US$62 gradual increase from US$40 to
from 2019 onwards inflated by US$ US$70 per barre by June 2019
inflation according to Bloomberg

MET on crude oil based on increase in MET base rate to based on increase in MET base rate
RURg19 per ton in January 2017 and to RUR919 per ton in January 2017
expiration of 15 years 80% MET reliefin  and expiration of 15 years 80% MET
September 2028 relief in September 2028

Production volume of erude oil 297,480 thousand barrels 108,770 thousand barrels

over economntic life of the fields

Taxation

The Group is subject to income and other taxes. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
ineome tax and other taxes due to complexity of the tax legislation of the Russian Federation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that it will generate enough taxable profits to utilise deferred income tax
recognised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. Management prepares cash flow forecasts to support
tecoverability of deferred tax assets. Cash flow models are based on a number of assumptions relating to oil prices,
operating expenses, production volumes, etc. These assumptions are consistent with those, used by mdependent
reservair engineers. Management also takes into account uncertainties related to future activities of the Group and going
concern considerations, When significant uncertainties exist deferred tax assets arising from losses are not recognised
even if recoverability of these is supported by cash flow forecasts.

Segment reporting

Management views the Group as one operating segment and uses reports for the entire Group to make strategic
decisions. 99% of total revenues from external customers in 2016 were derived from sales of crude oil and gas condensate
(2015: 99%). These sales are made to domestic and international oil traders. Although there are a limited number of
these traders, the Group is not dependent on any one of them as crude oil is widely traded and there are a number of
other potential buyers of this commodity. The Group’s operations are entirely located in Russia.

The Company’s Board of Directors evaluates performance of the entity on the basis of different measures, including total
expenses, capital expenditures, operating expenses per barrel and others.

5. Adoption of the new and revised standards

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements the following accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations were issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and IFRS Interpretations Committee in the
year ended 31 December 2016 or earlier, but are not yet effective and therefore have not been applied:

) Not endorsed by the European Union
New standards and ihterpr{li‘aﬁ(ms

» IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts (issued on 30 January 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016).
» IFRS 16 — Leases (issued on 13 January 2016 and effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

Amendments

« Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (issued on 11 September 2014 but deferred indefinitely).

» Amendments to TAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses {issued on 19 January 2016 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

s Amendments to IAS 7 — Diselosure Initiative (issued on 29 January 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017).

» Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 12 April 2016 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

s Amendments to TFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (issued on
20 June 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

» Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (issued on 8 December 2016 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

» IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (issued on 8 December 2016 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).
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Notes to the Consolhidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amaounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

(it} Endorsed by the European Umon
New standards und interpretations

+ IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (issued on 24 July 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018).

¢ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers {issued on 28 May 2014) including amendments to IFRS 15:
Effective date of IFRS 15 (issued on 11 September 2015 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1. January 2018).

Amendments

+ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and TAS 28: Investment Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception (issued on
18 December 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

+ Amendments to IAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (issued on 12 August 2014 and effective for
annual periods beginning 1 January 2016).

» Amendments to IAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative (issued on 18 December 2014 and effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 Jarmary 2016).

+ Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012—2014 Cycle (issued on 25 September 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

s Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 — Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation (issued
on 12 May 2014 and effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

+ Amendments to IFRS 11 — Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations (issued on 6 May 2014 and
effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016).

+ Amendments to IAS 19 - Defined benefits Plans: Employee Contributions (issued in November 2013 and effective for
the annual periods beginning 1 July 2014).

Management expects that the adoption of these accounting standards in future periods will not have a material effect on
the financial statements of the Group.

6. Segment reporting
Management views the operations of the Group as one operating segment. Should the Group diversify its operations its
financial reporting will be adjusted to reflect such change.

The Company’s Board of Directors evaluates performance of the Group on the basis of different measures, including,
production volumes, related revenues, capital expenditures, operating expenses per barrel and others.

7. Revenue

Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Revenue from crude oil sales 43425 43,254
Other revenue 567 621
Total revenue 43,992 43,875

Other revenue includes proceeds from third parties for crude oil transportation.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, revenue from export sales of crude oil amounted to
US$13,471 thousand and US$12,618 thousand, respectively.

Revenues from certain individual customers from sales of crude oil and gas condensate approximately equalled or
exceeded 10% of total Group revenue.

Year ended 31 December
Customer 2016 2015
Customer 1 21,221 17,366
Customer 2 13,471 12,618
Customer 3 4,481 10,403
29,173 40,477
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Notes to the Cousolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are 1 USS thousands, uniess otherwise stated}

8. Cost of sales

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Depletion, depreciation and amortisation 27,844 27,355
Mineral extraction tax 8,678 9,069
Employee benefit expense 6,922 6,487
Production services 4,064 3,586
Change of inventories and cost of purchased oil 3,869 2,273
Repairs and maintenance 2,208 1,807
Taxes other than income tax 1,748 1,844
Transportation services 670 352
Reserves evaluation - 200
Other 1,185 883
Total cost of sales 57,188 53,856

Q. Selling and administralive expenses
Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Selling expenses
Oil transportation costs 2,006 2,617
Administrative expenses
Employee benefit expense 7,392 B,350
Professional services 2,025 1,585
Rent expenses 1,207 989
Depreciation and amortisation 657 838
Travel expenses 519 446
IT, telecom and other information services 225 256
Bank charges 103 64
Other 445 430
Total selling and administrative expenses 14,669 15,585

0Oil transportation costs represent the cost of transferring oil to export customers through the ‘Transneft’ pipeline system.
Auditor remuneration

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditor and its network firms:

Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of
company and consolidated financial statements 265 353
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services:
- Tax advisory services 24 45
— Other consulting services 76 41

Employee benefit expense
The employee numbers and costs incurred in the reporting years were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Wages and salaries 13,188 13,683
Social security costs 1,126 1,154
Total employee costs 14,314 14,837
Average number of employees (including Directors) 264 232

Details of the remuneration of senior management are set out in Note 24.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanaal Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
(all tabular umounts are in USY thousands, untess otherwise stated)

1Q. Finance costs
Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Interest expense on borrowings 28,595 22,526
Unwinding discount of provision for dismantlement (Note 21) 530 389
Other financial expenses 2,108 1,753
Total finance costs 31,233 24,668

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, borrowing costs amounting to US$3,792 thousand and
US$2,070 thousand, respectively, were capitalised in Property, plant and equipment and are not included above. The
eapitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation for the year ended
31 December 2016 was 10% per annum {2015: 11%).

Other financial expenses include interest on the outstanding amount of Glencore and EnergoResurs prepayment facilities
{see Note 22) and amortisation of payment for the Otkritie credit faeilities.

11. Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, include impairment charge of financial instruments in total amount of US$1,655 thousand (see
Note 17) and an accrual of provision for VAT payable of US$493 thousand as a result of tax inspection. The Group will
argue the tax inspection decision in court.

Other expenses, net, for 2015 mainly consisted of an insurance claim settlement received in total amount of
US$1,800 thousand relating to an incident with damage to insured property during well construction and an impairment
charge of financial instruments in total amount of US$1,869 thousand (see Note 17).

12, Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were:

Year ended 3t December
2016 2015
Current income tax expense - -
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 5,067 (9,591)
Total income tax expense/(benefit) 5,067 (9,591)

Loss before taxation for financial reporting purposes is reconciled to the tax calculation for the period as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Loss before income tax (i4,829) (108,725)
Income tax benefit at applicable tax rate 2,966 21,745
Tax effect of losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised {2,006) (3.837)
Tax effect interest on shareholders’ loans (2,078) (2,057)
Tax effect utilisation of previously unrecognised tax loss carry forwards 558 1,389
Tax effect previously not recognised on property, plant and equipment - (3,604)
Tax effect of losses for which deferred income tax asset was derecognised - (612)
Tax effect of losses expired - (416)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (4,507) (3,017)
Income tax (expense)/benefit (5,067) 9,591

Differences between IFRS and statutory taxation regulations in Russia give rise to temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. The tax effect of the
movements in these temporary differences is detailed below and is recorded at the rate of 20% for Group companies
incorporated in the Russian Federation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are in US% thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the following:

Recognised in Translation 31 December
1 January 2016 profit or loss difference 2016
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary differences and tax loss carry
forwards
Accounts payable 1,463 561 356 2,380
Tax loss carry-forward 12,955 (4,080) 2,173 11,048
Property, plant and equipment (9,898) (790) (1,432) (12,120}
Mineral rights and intangible assets (35,967) 14 (7,247) (43,200}
Inventories (161) - 130 (31)
Loans and borrowings 7,518 (5,989) 870 2,399
Accounts and notes receivable (6,771) 5,217 (803) (2,357)
Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) (30.861) (5,067) (5,953) (41,881)
Recognised deferred tax asset 7,764 (6,321) 883 2,326
Recognised deferred tax liability (38,625) 1,254 (6,836) (44,207)
Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) (30,861) (5,067) (5,953) (41,881)
Recognised in Translation 31 December
1 January 2015 profit or loss difference 2015
Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary differences and tax loss carry
forwards
Accounts payable 1,351 499 (387) 1,463
Tax loss carry-forward 3,260 12,413 {2,718) 12,955
Property, plant and equipment (7.823) (3,713) 1,638 {9,898)
Mineral rights and intangible assets (46,290) {280) 10,603 (35,967)
Inventories o (169) 15 (161)
Loans and borrowings (300) 9,215 (1,397) 7:518
Accounts and notes receivable 352 {8,374) 1,251 {6,771)
Net deferred tax asset/
(liability) (49,457) 9,591 9,005 (30,861)
Recognised deferred tax asset - 9,232 (1.468) 7,764
Recognised deferred tax liability (49.457) 359 10,473 (38,625)
Net deferred tax asset/
(Tiability) (49,457) 9,591 9,005 (30,861)

The Group recognises deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses incurred only by INGA, because it is probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utilise the deductible temporary difference.

Starting from 1 January 2017, in respect of companies located in Russia the limitation on carry-forward of losses for a 10-
year period will be reveked in principle (which means that losses incurred since 2007 will be carried forward until fully
recognised). Limitations for the recognition of losses cartied forward for the period from 2017 to 2020 have been also
introduced. In accordance with the new rules, the amount of recognised loss carry forwards can’t exceed 50% of the tax

base of relevant year.

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of US$67,834 thousand and US$56,859 thousand, in respect of
losses that can be carried forward without limiting the year of expiration against future taxable income, amounting to

US$338,076 thousand and US$284,446 thousand as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, respectively.
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13. Property, plant and equipment
Other property,
0Oil and gas plantand  Construction in

properties equipment progress Total
Cost as at 1 January 2016 166,257 5:353 32,997 204,607
Additions - - 57,027 57,027
Transfers 1o fixed assets 42,857 279 (43.136) -
Change in provision for dismantlement
(Note 21) 3,657 - - 3,657
Disposals (3,342) (1,219) (499} (5,060)
Effect of translation to presentation
currency 33,820 888 7,138 41,846
Cost as at 31 December 2016 243,249 5,301 53.527 3oz,077
Accumulated depletion and
impairment as at 1 January 2016 (69,704) (3,190) (735) (73,629)
Charge for the period {(25,579) {657) - (26,236)
Disposals 2,455 1,028 499 3,082
Effect of translation to presentation
currency {(14,938) (520) (95) {15,553)
Accumulated depletion and
impairment as at 31 December
2016 (107,766) (3.339) (331) (111,436)
Net book value as at 31 December
2016 135,483 1,962 53,196 190,641

Other property,
0Oil and gas plantand  Construction in

properties equipment progress Total
Cost as at 1 January 2015 184,384 6,100 22,670 213,154
Additions - - 40,278 40,278
Transfers to fixed assets 22,062 1,047 (23,109) -
Change in provision for dismantlement
(Note 21) 2,507 - - 2,507
Disposals (1,004) (570) (43) (1,707)
Effect of translation to presentation
currency (41.602) (1,224) (6,799) (49,625)
Cost as at 31 December 2015 166,257 5,353 32,997 204,607
Accumulated depletion and
jmpairment as at t January 2015 (60,027) (4,036) (952) (635,015)
Charge for the period (27,029) (838) - (27,867)
Disposals 1,092 539 - 1,631
Effect of translation to presentation
currency 16,260 1,145 217 17,622
Accumulated depletion and
impairment as at 31 December
2015 (69,704) (3,190) (735) (73,629)
Net book value as at 31 December
2015 96,553 2,163 32,262 130,978

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, additions to construction in progress are primarily made
up of additions to production facilities, including wells, as well as additions to infrastructure. As at 31 December 2016 and
2015, the construction in progress balance mainly represents production wells and oil production infrastructure not
finalised (e.g. pads, electricity grids, etc.).

The Group’s property, plant and equipment in total amount of US$31,315 thousand was pledged under the credit facility
agreements with Otkritie and Trust as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: US$7,841 thousand).
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i4. Mineral rights and other intangibles

Other
Mineral intangible
rights assets Total
Cost as at 1 January 2016 177,733 3,345 181,078
Additions - 2,195 2,195
Disposals - (254) (254)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 35,823 883 36,706
Cost as at 31 December 2016 213,556 6,169 219,725
Accumulated depletion and impairment as at 1 January
2016 (959) (286) (1,245)
Charge for the period (1,853) (412) (2,265)
Disposals - 254 254
Effect of translation to presentation currency (392) (75) (467)
Accumuliated depletion and impairment as at 31 December
2016 (3,204) (519) (3,723)
Net book value as at 1 January 2016 176,774 3,059 179,833
Net book value as at 31 December 2016 210,352 5,650 216,002
Other
Mineral intangible
rights assets Total
Cost as at 1 January 2015 230,253 2,566 232,819
Additions - 1,622 1,622
Effect of translation to presentation currency (52,520) (843) (53,363)
Cost as at 31 December 2015 177,733 3,345 181,078
Accumulated depletion and impairment as at 1 January 2015 (1,063) (194) (1,257)
Charge for the period (164) (162) (326)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 268 70 338
Accomulated depletion and impairment as at 31 December
2015 (959) (286) (1,245)
Net book value as at 1 January 2015 220,190 2,372 231,562
Net book value as at 31 December 2015 176,774 3,059 179,833

Intangible assets of the Group are not pledged as security for liabilities and their titles are not restricted.

5. Inventories
31 December
2016 2015
Spare parts, consumables and other inventories 1,098 615
Crude oil 747 830
Total inventories 1,845 1,

The Group did not have any obsolete or slow-moving inventory at either of the reporting dates.

16, Trade and other receivables

31 December

2016 2015
Trade receivables 2,625 1,821
Other receivables and prepayments 1,914 1,423
VAT recoverable 7,100 2,502
Total trade and other receivables 11,639 §58§6

Trade recejvables comprise of amounts in US$ and RUR and are not past-due or impaired. Other receivables and
prepayments are mostly RUR denominated and relate to counterparties with no history of delays in settlements. VAT
recoverable is used either to offset against amounts due for mineral extraction tax or is recovered in cash. The VAT is
recovered within three to six months from its initiation, following a review by the tax authorities.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group has impaired prepayments amounting to US$276 thousand
and US$114 thousand, respectively. In determining the recoverability of trade and other receivables, the Group considers
any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
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17. Other carrent assets and liabilities

Other current assets

In November 2014 the Group purchased promissory notes denominated in RUR. Due to the change of management plans
the promissory notes were returned to the seller in October 2015 for the agreed amount payable before 31 December 2016
and bearing an interest of 10% per annum. Because of the change of the recoverable amount of the receivables in
comparison with the estimation of the value of the promissory notes, the Group recognised an impairment loss in other
expenses in amount of US$1,655 thousand in (2015: US$1,869 thousand).

Other current liabilities
Other liabilities include environmental tax abligations arising in the ordinary course of business and interest payable
related to the prepayment facilities with Glencore and EnergoResurs.

18. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December
2016 2015
Cash in bank denominated in UUS$ 6,316 5,376
Cash in bank denominated in RUR 1,128 1,068
Cash in bank denominated in £ 108 163
Cash in bank denominated in EUR 2 4
Total cash and cash equivalents 7204 2511

Cash balances generally carry no interest. The Group holds its cash with Sberbank (Moody’s rating Ba2/ baz2/NP
{Negative) at 31 December 2016 and Ba2/ baz/NP (Stable) at 31 December 2015), Bank of America (Moody’s rating
A1/baa2/P1 (Stable) at 31 December 2016 and A1/baa2/P1 (Stable) at 31 December 2015) and Bank of Cyprus (Moody’s
rating Caa2/caas/NP (Positive} at 31 December 2016 and Caa3/caa3/NP (Stable) at 31 December 2015), Otkritie
(Moody’s rating (Bag/b1/NP (Negative) at 31 December 2016 and (Ba3/b1/NP (Negative) at 31 December 2015) and
Public Joint-Stock Company “National Bank Trust” (Trust} (no credit rating).

19, Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

31 December

2016 2015
Ordinary share capital 135.493 135,493

Issued and paid up share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 consisted of 870,112,016 ordinary
shares with a par value of £0.10 each.

20. Borrowings
31 December
2016 2015
Current
Short-term loans from shareholders of the Company 4,293 20,709
Otkritie - 3,896
Trust 512 277
Total current borrowings 4,805 24,882
31 December
2016 2015
Non-current
Otkritie 271,257 185,118
Long-term loans trom shareholders of the Company 87,025 83,032
Trust 24,507 13,494
Total long-term borrowings §82,789 282,544

Otkntie credit faciities

The loan facility from Otkritie in the amount of US$150,000 thousand obtained and drawn down in full in
December 2014, pursuant to a loan agreement dated 14 November 2014, is repayable in November 2019, bears interest at
8% per annum and is subject to certain covenants, including production targets. In December 2015 an addendum to the
credit facility agreements was concluded whereby the applicable covenants were modified and provided solely for
reduced production targets.

On 14 November 2014 credit facility agreements for US$100,000 thousand and US$44,700 thousand were entered into
with Otkritie for the Group’s field development and for general working capital purposes respectively. As at
31 December 2016, facilities in total amount of US$81,400 thousand out of US$100,000 thousand and
US$44,700 thousand out of US$44,700 thousand were drawn down under these agreements, respectively
(31 December 2015: US$24,400 thousand and US$21,344 thousand, respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ror the vear ended 31 December 2016
(all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

In December 2016 addendums to the credit faciliies with Otkritie were concluded, whereby interest became payable
quarterly based on greater of 1.5% or Libor 3m, and the residual accrued interest payable with repayment of loans in
November 2019. These amendments did not substantially alter the terms of the original loans, and therefore were not
treated as extinguishment of an existing liability and recognition of a new Lability. The present value difference arising
from the renegotiation was recognised over the remaining life of these loans by adjusting the effective interest rate.

‘Trust evedit facibity

On 17 November 2015 the Group entered into a credit facility agreement with Trust, a bank affiliated with Otkritie, for
the amount of US$25,600 thousand. This relates to utilisation of the funding available under the first
US$50,000 thousand tranche of the Development Facility with Otkritie. As at 31 December 2016, total amount of
US$25,600 thousand was drawn down under this facility (31 December 2015: US$13.841 thousand).

On 15 January 2016 an addendum to the credit facility with Trust was concluded, whereby the applicable covenants were
modified and provided solely for reduced production targets.

Loans from shareholders of the Company

The Group has a number of US$ denominated loans obtained from Shareholders of the Company. All of these loans are
unsecured and the interest rate on most of these loans is Libor +10% per annum. Certain loans of an amount
US$303 thousand have matured by 31 December 2016 and 2015 and are presented as current liabilities.

Covenants breach

As of 1 July and 1 October 2016 the Group was in non-compliance with the production covenants agreed with one of the
banks. According to the cross default clauses, breach of production covenants leads to non-compliance with the
provisions of all other debt agreements with banks and one of the shareholder’s agreement. The Group received waivers
from the respective banks and the shareholder, stating that the creditors would not recall the debt due to nen-compliance
with covenants, and consequently cross default for other debt agreement with creditors.

Foregn exchange gains/losses

The Group recognised a net foreign exchange gain amounting to US$47,723 thousand during the year ended
31 December 2016, out of which US$45,684 thousand relate 1o the US$ denominated credit facilities and outstanding
accrued interest. The Group recognised a net foreign exchange loss amount to US$57,221 thousand during the year
ended 31 December 2015, out of which US$51,322 thousand relate to the US$ denominated credit facilities and
outstanding accrued interest.

21. Provision for dismantlement

The provision for dismantlement represents the net present value of the estimated future obligations for abandonment
and site restoration costs which are expected to be incurred at the end of the production lives of the oil and gas fields
which is estimated to be in 25 years from 31 December 2016.

2016 2015
As at 1 January 5,707 4,238
Additions for new obligations and changes in estimates (Note 13) 3,657 2,507
Unwinding of discount 530 389
Effect of translation to presentation currency 1,602 (1,427)
As at 31 December 11,496 5,707

This provision has been created based on the Group's internal estimates. Assumptions, based on the current economic
environment, have been made which management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate future
dismantlement liability. These estimates are reviewed regularly to take into account any material changes to the
assumptions. However, actual dismantlement costs will ultimately depend upon future market prices for the necessary
dismantlement works required which will reflect market conditions at the relevant time. Furthermore, the timing is likely
to depend on when the fields cease to produce at economically viable levels. This in turn will depend upon future oil and
gas prices and future operating costs which are inherently uncertain.

22, Trade and other payables
31 December
2016 2015
Trade payables 16,267 5383
Other non-financial liabilities 23,602 17,344
Total trade and other payables 39,959 22,727

Trade and other payables are denominated primarily in Russian roubles, except for the advance received from Glencore
Energy UK Ltd. (“Glencore”) in the amount of US$8,333 thousand presented as non-financial liabilities, which is
denominated in US$.

On 31 May 2016 the Group signed a prepayment agreement with EnergoResurs for total amount of
RUR750,000 thousand (US$11,349 thousand) with additional amount RUR350,000 thousand (US$5,684 thousand)
received by the Group in December 2016, which was dependent on the Group's ability to meet certain production targets.
'The facility requires the Group to deliver 210,000 ton of crude oil to EnergoResurs during a period of eighteen months.
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On g9 November 2016 the Group obtained a prepayment from Glencore Energy UK Ltd (“Glencore™) in the amount of
US$$10,000 thousand. The facility is for the period of twelve months and requires the Group to deliver 72,000 ton of
crude oil to Glencore during the term of the contract.

=3. Capital commitments and other contingencies

Legal contingencies

As at 31 December 2016 the Group had two claims from one of the suppliers in total amount of RUR230.8 million
(approx. US$3.8 million). Management does not agree with the claims and shall take all necessary steps to protect the
position of the Group.

Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had contractual commitments for capital expenditures of US$20,248 thousand
(31 December 2015: US$24,952 thousand).

Licence commitiments

The Group's exploration and production licences require certain operational commitments. These include performance
criteria certain of which have not been fully met during 2016. The Directors note that breach of licence performance
conditions has not given rise to any material fines or penalties. Furthermore, management has been undertaking
particular actions to meet required licence performance criteria. The Directors also note that the Group’s production
programme has been inspected by the Russian licensing authorities subsequent to 31 December 2016 and that no
material fines or penalties have resulted.

Liquidity of subsidiary undertakings

In accordance with the legal framework in the Russian Federation, creditors and tax authorities may initiate bankruptey
proceedings against an entity with negative net assets. As at 31 December 2016, Ruspetro Russia reported net liabilities
under Russian GAAP. However, no such bankruptcy proceedings have been initiated either by the creditors or the tax
authorities against them. The Directors consider such net liability position to be not abnormal given that the Group is still
at a development stage.

Operating lease commitments ~ Group as Lessee

The Group has entered into leases for land plots, woodlots and motor vehicles. The land in the Russian Federation on
which the Group’s production facilities are located is owned by the State. The Group leases land through operating lease
agreements, which expire in various years through 2034. These leases have renewal terms at the option of the lessee at
lease payments based on market prices at the time of renewal. There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by
entering into these leases.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as
follows:

31 December
2016 2015
Within one year 1,104 982
After one year but not more than five years 3,239 3,003
More than five years 51 627
Total operating lease commitments and other contingencies 4,394 4,612

Operating risks and contingencies

Pledge of shares

On the opening of its credit facility with Otkritie, the Group provided to Otkritie as collateral its shares in INGA and
Trans-oil.

Taxation contingencies

Russian tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur
frequently. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Group may
be challenged by the relevant regional and federal authorities in the Russian Federation.

Recent events within the Russian Federation indicate that the Russian tax authorities may be taking a more assertive
position in their interpretation of the prevailing legislation and assessments, and it is possible that transactions and
activities which have not been challenged in the past may be challenged in the future. The Supreme Arbitration Court of
the Russian Federation has issued gnidance to lower courts on reviewing tax cases providing a systemic roadmap for anti-
avoidance claims, and it is possible that this will significantly increase the level and frequency of the tax authorities’
scrutiny. As a result, significant additional taxes, penaities and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to
review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain
circumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

Amended Russian transfer pricing legislation took effect from 1 January 2012. The new transfer pricing rules appear to
be more technically elaborate and, to a certain extent, better aligned with the international transfer pricing principles
developed by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). The new legislation provides the
possibility for tax authorities to make transfer pricing adjustments and impose additional tax liabilities in respect of
controlled transactions (transactions with related parties and some types of transactions with unrelated parties),
provided that the transaction price is not arm’s length.
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Management believes that its pricing policy is arm’s length and it has implemented internal controls to be in compliance
with the new transfer pricing legislation.

Given that the practice of implementation of the new Russian transfer pricing rules has not yet developed, the impact of
any challenge of the Group’s transfer prices cannot be reliably estimated. However, such challenge could prove significant
to the financial conditions and/or the overall operations of the Group.

The Group includes companies incorporated outside Russia. Tax liabilities of the Group are determined on the
assumptions that these companpies are not subject to Russian profits tax because they do not have a permanent
establishment in Russia. Russian tax laws do not provide detailed rules on taxation of foreign companies. It is possible
that with the evolution of the interpretation of these rules and the changes in the approach of the Russian tax authorities,
the non-taxable status of some or all of the foreign companies of the Group in Russia may be challenged. The impact of
any such challenge cannat be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial condition and/or the
overall operations of the entity.

Management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and the Group’s tax, currency and
customs positions will be sustained. Where management believes it is probable that a position cannot be sustained, an
appropriate amount is accrued for in these consolidated financial statements.

Operating environment of the Group
The Russian Federation displays certain characteristics of an emerging market. Its economy is particularly sensitive to oil
and gas prices. The legal, tax and regulatory frameworks continue to develop and are subject to varying interpretations.

During 2016 the Russian economy was negatively impacted by low oil prices, ongoing political tension in the region and
continuing international sanctions against certain Russian companies and individuals, all of which contributed to the
country’s economic recession characterised by a decline in gross domestic product. The financial markets continue to be
volatile and are characterised by frequent significant price movements and increased trading spreads. Russia's credit
rating was downgraded to below investment grade. This operating environment has a significant impact on the Group's
operations and financial position. Management is taking necessary measures to ensure sustainability of the Group’s
operations. However, the futute effects of the current economic situation are difficult to predict and management’s
current expectations and estimates could differ from actual results.

Envirormental imatters

The enforcement of environmental regulation in the Russian Federation is evolving and the enforcement posture of
government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates its obligations under
environmental regulations. As obligations are determined, they are recognised immediately. Potential liabilities, which
might arise as a result of changes in existing regulations, civil litigation or legislation, cannot be estimated but could be
material. In the current enforcement climate under existing legislation, management believes that there are no significant
liabilities for environmental damage.

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received. The management is of the
opinion that there are no current legal proceedings or other claims outstanding that could have a material effect on the
results of operations or financial position of the Group for the period until 31 December 2016, which have not been
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

24. Related party disclosures

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
Key management includes Executive and Non-executive Directors of the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Employee remuneration 3,958 4,280
Benefits in kind 175 170
Non-executive Directors’ fees 227 560
Total compensation of key management personnel of the Group 4,360 5,010
The highest paid director’s compensation is shown below:
Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
Employee remuneration 2,773 2,302
Benefits in kind 121 115
Total compensation 2,804 2,507

All related party transactions are on an arm’s-length basis and no financial period end balances have arisen as result of
these transactions.
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Loans and borrowings from related partics
The Group has a number of loans from shareholders of the Company with the following balances:

2016 2015
As at 1 January 104,641 99,354
Interest accrued 10,362 10,287
Interest paid {23,715) (5,000)
As at 31 December 91,318 104,641

As at 31 Decemnber 2016 bank Otkritie and bank Trust became related parties of the Group. The balances are presented in
Note 20.

The effective interest rates of loans and borrowings are disclosed in Note 20.

Transactions with other related parties

Ruspetro Russia leased an office space in a building from a company, in which one of its sharehoclders has an interest, for
an annual rent and service charge of RUR50,872 thousand/US$757 thousand (excluding VAT). The lease will terminate
on 15 October 2021. Ruspetro Russia leased parking places at the office building from the same company for an annual
rent and service charge of RUR3,352 thousand/US$50 thousand (excluding VAT). This lease will terminate on 1 October
2021.

25. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise accounts payable, bank borrowings and other loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments and liabilities is to manage short-term cash flow and raise finance for the Group’s
capital expenditure programme. The Group has various financial assets such as accounts receivable and cash, which arise
directly from its cperations.

It is, and has been throughout the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s policy that no speculative
trading in derivatives shall be undertaken.

The main risks that could adversely affect the Group’s financial assets, liabilities or future cash flows are commodity
price-, interest rate-, foreign currency-, liquidity- and credit- risk related. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

The following discussion also includes a sensitivity analysis that is intended to illustrate the sensitivity to changes in
market variables on the Group’s financial instruments and show the impact on profit or loss and shareholders’ equity,
where applicable. Financial instruments affected by market risk include bank loans and overdrafts, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

The sensitivity has been prepared for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 using the amounts of debt and other
financial assets and liabilities held as at those statement of financing position dates.

Capital risk management

The Group considers capital to comprise both debt and equity. Total debt comprises long-term and short-term loans and
borrowings, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Equity of the Group comprises share capital,
share premium, other reserves and retained earnings. Equity of the Group was equal to negative US$55,000 thousand
and US$390,952 thousand as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively.

The Group's total debt was equal to US$387,594 thousand and US$307,426 thousand as at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 respectively.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide adequate levels of financing for its current development and production activities. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares, attract new or repay existing loans and borrowings.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds available to the Group, in order
to support its construction and production activities. The Group is at a development stage; as such it is dependent on
external financing to fund its activities. In order to carry out its planned construction and production activities and pay
for administrative costs, the Group will spend its existing capital and raise additional amounts as needed.

There were ne changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period. As at 31 December 2016 and
2015, the Group was not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements (except for described in Note 23). As at
31 December 2016 the Group is subject to certain covenants (Note 20).

Commaodity price risk

The Group sells crude oil and gas condensate under spot contracts on a monthly basis. Sales are centrally managed and
during the reporting periods were made both to domestic and international customers. The basis for determining the
export price is the price of Brent Crude. Changes in commodity prices can affect the Group’s financial performance,
either positively or negatively and make the Group’s revenues subject to volatility in line with fluctuations in crude oil
reference prices. Currently the Group does not use commodity derivative instruments to mitigate the risk of crude oil
price volatility.
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The table below provides the sensitivity of the Group’s revenues to a 50% change in price of crude oil.

Year ended 31 December
Commodily price risk 2016 2015
Favourable +50% 21,713 21,627
Unfavourable -50% (21,713) (21,627)

For the purposes of this analysis, the effect of a variation in crude oil prices on Group’s loss is caleulated independently of
any change in another assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may contribate to changes in another, which may
magnify or counteract these sensitivities.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, however, the possible impact of changes in interest rates are not significant
since the Group’s major borrowings are at fixed interest rates. There is no specific policy in place to hedge against
possible adverse changes in interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's loss before tax through the impact on floating rate borrowings.

Year ended 31 December

Effect on loss before tax
Increase/decrease in interest rate 2016 2015
+1.0% 910 1,043
-1.0% (910) (1,043)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises mainly from borrowing in currencies other than
the functional currency. The Group limits foreign currency risk by monitoring changes in exchange rates in the currencies
in which its cash and borrowings are denominated.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period was mainly concentrated
in the Otkritie credit facilities and Trust credit facility.
The following table shows the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US$ to RUR exchange rate, with all other

variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax due to changes in the carrying value of monetary assets and
liabilities.

Year ended 31 December
US$ strengthening/weakening against RUR Effect on loss before tax
zo16 2015
US$ strengthening by 50% (101,563) (76,284)
US$ weakening by 50% 304,689 228,851

Liguidity risk
The Group monitors liquidity risk by monitoring its debt rating and the maturity dates of existing debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 and 2015 based
on contractual undiscounted payments.

31 December 2016
Less
On than 1 1to2 ztosg
demand year years Years > 5 years Total
Borrowings (including interest) 303 11,071 384,658 99,758 - 495,790
Trade payables - 16,267 - - - 16,267
303 27,338 384,658 99,758 - 512,057
31 December 2015
Less
On than 1 1to2 2tog
demand year years Years > 5years Total
Borrowings (including interest) 303 43,579 20,937 356,254 - 421,073
Trade payables - 5,383 - - - 5,383
303 48,962 20,937 356,254 - 426,456
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Credit risk

The Group manages its own exposure to credit risk. The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.
All external customers undergo a creditworthiness check. The Group performs an ongoing assessment and menitoring of
financial position and the risk of default. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis thus the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group had one major customer being an international oil trader and accounting for at least 31% of total sales in 2016
(2015: 29%). Other sales are made to domeslic customers. The Group is, however, not dependent on any of its major
customers or any one particular customer as there is a ready market for crude oil. Analysis of sales to key customers is
included into Note 7.

The Group is exposed to concentrations of credit risk. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had three counterparties
(z015; four counterparties) with aggregated receivables balances US$2,634 thousand (2015: 1,814) or 23% of the gross
amount of trade and other receivables (2015: 31%).

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and equivalents, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these Instruments. The credit risk on cash is limited because the counterparties are either highly rated banks
or banks approved by the management of the Group. Approval is made after certain procedures are performed to assess
the reliability and creditworthiness of banks.

Fair values
Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed include cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other current assets, trade payables and borrowings. These are measured at level 3 category.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1),

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assct or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

« Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The fair values in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy were estimated using the discounted cash flows valuation technique.
The fair value of floating rate instruments that are not quoted in an active market was estimated to be equal to their
carrying amount. The fair value of unquoted fixed interest rate instruments was estimated based on estimated future cash
flows expected to be received discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risks and
remaining maturities,

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group’s financial instruments
that are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements:

Carrying amount Fair value
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,554 7,511 7,554 7,511
Trade receivables 2,625 1,821 2,625 1,821
Other current assets 1,655 2,533 1,655 2,533
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 16,267 5.383 16,267 5,383
Borrowings 387,594 307,426 383,788 312,040

26. Loss per share

Basic
Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company 19,896 99,134
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 870,112,016 870,112,016
Basic Loss per share (US$) 0.02 0.11
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Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Company has incurred a loss from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the effect of
considering the exercise of the options on the Company’s shares would be anti-dilutive, that is, it would reduce the loss
per share.

27, Events after the statement of financial position date

As of 1 January 2017 and 1 April 2017 the Group was in non-compliance with the production covenants agreed with the
banks. Accerding to the cross default clauses, breach of production covenants leads to non-compliance with the
provisions of all other debt agreements with banks and one of the shareholder’s agreement. The Group received waivers
from the respective banks and the shareholder for all periods when the covenants were breached, except for the waiver
from a shareholder for the test date of 1 January 2017 and the waivers from both banks and a shareholder for the test
date of 1 April 2017. The waivers state that the creditors would not recall the debt due to non-compliance with covenants,
and consequently cross default for other debt agreement with creditors. The management of the Group believes that the
creditors will not exercise their right to demand early repayment of the debt.

There have been no other material events after the end of reporting period which require disclosure in these consolidated
financial statements.

28.  Supplementary information (unaudited)

The Group’s in-house subsurface experts undertook an internal comprehensive resource assessment (the “assessment”)
involving (1) the re-examination of all sub-surface geological data (2) a review of available seismic data currently
undergoing re-processing, and (3) a review of historical well test and well performance data.

Following this assessment, the Group formaily adopted its internal estimate of evaluated its oil, condensate and gas
reserves as at 31 March 2016. In order to estimate its oil, condensate and gas reserves, the Group used the information
prepared by its internal reserve engineers. The Group’s internal resource assessment is the result of a thorough re-
examination of all sub-surface geclogical data and the available seismic data. All historical well test and well performance
data has also been re-examined and integrated into the evaluation models. The Group has rebuilt its resource base with a
bottom up technical analysis, incorporating a rigorous probabilistic approach combined with a modular project appraisal
and development plan.

Estimates of proved and probable and 2C Contingent oil, condensate and gas reserves as at 31 March 2016 are shown in
the table set out below.

Qil reservoirs Gas reservoirs Total
0il Associated Non- Condensate
gas associated gas
Reserve category ’000 barrels  Millions of Millions of 000 barrels 000 boe
cubic feet cubic feet
Proved and probable (2P) 107,900 152,431 8,300 250 134,945
2C Contingent 223,305 301,462 10,000 450 275,665
Total 331,211 453,893 18,300 700 410,610
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Parent Company Financial Statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ruspetro

Limited

Report on the Parent company
financial statements

In our opinion, Ruspetro Limited's parent company
financial statements (the “financial statements”):

*  give a true and fair view of the state of the
Parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2016 and of its cash flows for the year then
ended;

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs™} as adopted by the European Union
and as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have heen prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Compames Act 2006.

x
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In forming our opinion on the financial statements,
which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2 to the financial
statements concerning the Parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. This ability is dependent on
whether the Group can obtain additional financing for
the purposes of working capital and investment in field
development, and on the Group meeting the production
targets included in the covenants attached to its bank
borrowings as well as on the creditors not claiming
immediate debt repayment due to non-compliance with
covenants. These conditions, along with the other
matters explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The financial
statements do not include the adjustments that would
result if the Parent company was unable to continue as a
going concern.

amppiiiost

The financial statements, included within the Annual
Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report”™), comprise:

o the Statement of Financial Position as at 31

‘{11 %_-t"#g RN gfu‘u‘:”

December 2016;

o the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended;

+  the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended; and

» the nates to the financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting
policies and cther explanatory information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the financial statements is IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, and applicable law, and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the
Directors have made a number of subjective judgements,
for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates. In making such estimates, they have made
assumphons and conmdered future events.

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:

» the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding
of the Parent company and its environment cbtained in
the course of the andit, we are required to report if we
have identified any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. We have

nothmg to report in this respect.

Other matters on whlch we are
reqmred to report by exceptlon
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Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

=  we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept
by the Parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
resp0n51b111ty
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Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of Directors’

remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Parent Company Financial Statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Ruspetro

Responsibilities for the
financial statements and the
audit
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As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 11, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Anditing (UK and
Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Parent company’s members as a body
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK &
Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:

¢  whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed;

s  thereasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Directors; and

e the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing
the Directors’ judgements against available evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the

knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether those
reports include the disclosures required by applicable
legal requirements.

Other matter

‘We have reported separately on the Group financial
statements of Ruspetro Limited for the year ended 31
December 2016. That report includes an emphasis of
matter.

WOyl

Kevin Reynard (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Aceountants and Statatory Auditors
Aberdeen

25 April 2017

*  The maintenance and integrity of the Ruspetro
Limited website is the responsibility of the
Directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the website.

s  Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
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Statement of Financial position

as at 31 December 2016

(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Loans issued to subsidiaries

Current assets

Receivables from Ruspetro JSC

Receivables from Ruspetro Holding Limited
Trade and other receivables

VAT recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

Share premium
Retained loss

Other reserves

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current habilities

Current liabilities
Payables to Ruspetro JSC
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Note 31 December 31 December
2016 2015

- 64

5 480,476 480,476
6,070 1,850

486,546 482,390

1,738 7,785

782 -

12 98

23 18

6 226 507
2,781 8,408

489,327 490,798

135.493 135,493

7 389,558 389,558
(43,676) (41,967)

7,221 7,221

488,596 490,305

518 420

213 73

731 493

731 493

489,327 490,798

>

Alexander Chistyakov
Executive Chairinan

Alexander Betsky
Finance Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity

as at 31 December 2016

(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at 1 January 2015

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Balance as at 1 January 2016

Lass for the period

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Total comprehensive income for the
period

Balance as at 31 December 2016

Share Other

Share capital premium  Retained loss reserves _Total equity
135,493 389,558 (42,990) 7,221 489,282
- - 1,023 - 1,023

- - 1,023 - 1,023
135,493 389,558 (41,967) 7,221 490,305
135,493 389,558 (41,967) 7,221 490,305
- - (1,709) - (11709)

- - (1,709) - (1,709)
135,493 389,558 {43,676) 7,221 488,596
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Parent Company Financial Statements

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 December 2016

(presented in US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss

Finance income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating cash flow before working capital
adjustinents

Working capital adjustments:
Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables

Change in other taxes receivable/payable
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Loans given to Ruspetro Holding Limited
Repayment of loans given to Ruspetro JSC
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investments in Ruspetro JSC

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

Year ended 31 December
2016 2015
(1,709) 1,023
- 27
(141) 81
(225) (5,496)
64 4
(2,011) (3,631)
5,351 2,597
380 (2,261)
(5) 816
3,715 (2,479)
(5,996) -
2,000 3,835
- (70}
= (83900)
(3,996) (5,135)
(281) (7,614)
507 8,121
226 507
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016
(all tabular amounts are in US$ thousands unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

The financial statements of Ruspetro Limited (the ‘Company’ or ‘Ruspetro’) for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
approved by its Board of Directors on 24 April 2017.

The Company was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 20 October 2011 as a public company under the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006. On 6 June 2016 Ruspetro delisted from the London Stock Exchange and registered as a private
company. The Company’s registered office is International House, 24 Holborn Viaduct, City of London, London EC1A
28BN, United Kingdom.

The Company is a parent of Ruspetro Group, the principal activities of which are exploration for and production of crude
oil in the Khanty-Mansiysk region of the Russian Federation.

Details of suhsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

Effective ownership
Business Country of Year of
Company activity incorporation _incerporation 31 December 2016
Ruspetro Holding Limited ~ Holding company Reg;;)rlll;; of 2007 100%
Ruspetro JSC (‘Ruspetro . Russian
Russia”) Crude oil sale Federation 2005 100%
Exploration and Russian
INGA producnop Federation 1998 100%
of crude oil
Exploration and :
Trans-oil production F(I:duesf;?ign 2001 100%
of crude oil
2, Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, rnodified for fair value under IFRS,

These financial statements are presented in US dollars (US$) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Parent
Company is not presented as part of these Financial Statements. The loss dealt with in the Financial Statements of the
Company is US$1,709 thousand

Going concern

These financial statements are prepared on a going coneern basis, which presumes that the Company will be able to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2016, the Company had net current assets of US$2,050 thousand, which included cash in hand of
1US$226 thousand.

Management considers that the continued operational existence of the Company is dependent upon the ability to make
further investment in field development of the subsidiaries in order to increase hydrocarbon production and sales. In the
short term, this field development is planned to involve, in particular, the drilling of a number of horizontal wells, the
success of which will only be known with certainty once each well is completed. In the light of these results, the nature
and extent of the subsidiaries’ drilling programme may change over time, with a consequent change in investment
requirements.

Accordingly, the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash from operations may be materially affected by the
results of the Company’s current appraisal activity and the success of future drilling activities, as well as by a number of
economic factors to which the Group’s financial forecasts are particularly sensitive, such as crude oil prices, the level of
inflation in Russia, and foreign exchange rates.

The Company finances its exploration and development activities using a combination of cash in hand, operating cash
flow generated mainly from the sale of crude oil production, prepayments from forward oil sale agreements and
additional debt or equity financing. The Company plans to raise additional financing during the next twelve months, but
the success of such fundraising cannot be guaranteed.

Russpetro Linvited
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The credit facilities obtained by subsidiaries from Otkritie and Trust contain certain covenants, including production
volume targets, which the subsidiaries need to meet to avoid acceleration of the debt repayment schedule. Starting from
the 1 July 2016 the snbsidiaries were in the breach of certain covenants, and obtained respective waivers from the
creditors to remedy these breaches for all periods when the covenants were breached, except for the four quarters ending
on 31 March 2017.

Despite the fact that Otkritie and Trust have not formally waived their right to demand early repayment of their loans in
connection with the last production covenants test date of 1 April 2017, and the creditors have a formal right to demand
repayment, the management of the Company believes that the creditors will not exercise their right to demand early
repayment of the debt.

Currently, the Company has launched a structured effort to identify a strategic investor(s) either at the corporate level or
at the asset level to finance the Group’s long-term development plans. The creditor representatives of the Board are
supportive of this process, with a positive development being supportive ensuring timely fulfilment of the Group’s
obligations under the current loan agreements.

In addition, during the reporting period, the Company’s subsidiary obtained Russian ruble (“RUR”) 750,000 thousand
{US$11,349 thousand) and RUR 350,000 thousand (US$ 5,684 thousand) as forward oil sale prepayment from
LLC EnergoResurs (“EnergoResurs”) and US$10,000 thousand from Glencore Energy UK Ltd. (“Glencore™).
Prepayments from forward oil sale agreements are one of the main sources of working capital. The renewal of such
prepayments occurs regularly under normal course of business, but cannot be certain and, therefore, the Directors
recognise that this, together with the ongoing need to raise finance and comply with production covenants, represents a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

However, on the basis of the assumptions and cash flow forecasts prepared, management has assumed that the Company
will continue to operate within both available and prospective facilities. Accordingly, the Company’s financial statements
are prepared on the going concern basis and do not include any adjustments that would be required in the event that the
Company were no longer able to meet its liabilities as they fall due.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Investments
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are included in the balance sheet of the Company at cost less any provision for
impairment.

Impairment of non-finaneial assets

The Company performs impairment reviews in respect of fixed asset investments whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised when the
recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s net realisable value and its value in use, is less than its

carrying amount.

Financial instruments

The accounting policy for financial instruments is consistent with the Group accounting policy as presented in the notes
to the Group financial statements. The Company’s financial risk management policy is consistent with the Group’s
financial risk management policy outlined in the Group financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any provision for impairment.

A provision for impairment is recognised when there is an objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the loans and receivables. The amount of provision is the difference
between the assets’ carrying value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The change in the amount of the loan or receivable is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is
recognised in profit or loss by applying the effective interest rate.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any.

Barrowings and accounts payable
The Company's financial liabilities are represented by trade and other payables.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
Hability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Pareat Company Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{all tabular amounts are 1o US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Taxes

Inconme tax

The income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes calculated based on the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Current and deferred taxes are charged or credited to profit or
loss except where they are attributable to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
corresponding tax is also taken to equity.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profits or
losses for the current and prior periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability method. Deferred
taxes provide for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values
for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or carry forward can be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and liabilities, when deferred tax balances are referred to the same governmental body (i.e. federal, regional or local) and
the same subject of taxation and when the Company intends to perform an offset of its current tax assets and liabilities.

Equity

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares and options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over
the par value of shares issued is recorded as share preminm.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognised in the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rate of exchange in effect at the end of the reporting period.

The US dollar ("US$™) is the functional and presentation currency of the Company. The assets and liabilities are
translated into the presentation currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of each of the reporting period. Income
and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions). All the resulting exchange differences are recorded in
other comprehensive income.

The US$ to £ exchange rates were 0.81 and 0.68 as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, respectively and the
average rates for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were 0.74 and 0.65 respectively.

Share option plan

The share option plan, under which the Group has the ability to choose whether to settle it in cash or equity instruments
at the discretion of the Board of Directors is accounted for as an equity settled transaction. The fair value of the options
granted by the Parent to employees is measured at the grant date and calculated using the Trinomial option pricing
model and recognised in the financial statements as a component of equity with a corresponding amount recognised in
selling, general and administrative expenses over the time share reward vest to the employee.

Modifications of the terms or conditions of the equity instruments granted in a manner that reduces the total fair value of
the share-based payment arrangement or is not otherwise beneficial to the employee, are accounted for as services
received in consideration for the equity instruments granted as if the modification had not occurred.
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Notes te the Parent Company Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2016
{al} tabular amounts are 1o US$ thousands, unless otherwise stated)

g Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions are consistent with the Group significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions as presented in the notes to the Group financial statements.

5. Investments in subsidiaries
31 December
2016 2015
Ruspetro Holding Limited 219,638 219,638
Ruspetro JSC 260,838 260,838
Total investments in subsidiaries 480,476 480,476

Management have performed an impairment review on the carrying value of the subsidiaries with no impairment
resulting {refer to Note 4 of consolidated financial statements for the basis and assumptions used in performing the

review).

6. Cash and cash equivalents
31 December
2016 2015
Cash in bank denominated in US$ 118 343
Cash in bank denominated in £ 108 164
Total cash and cash equivalents 226 507

Cash balances generally bear no interest. The Company holds its cash with Bank of America (Moody’s rating A1/baa2/P-1
(Stable) at 31 December 2016 and A1/baa2/P-1 (Stable)} at 31 December 2015).

7 Sharehoiders’ equity
Share capital

31 December

2016 2015
Ordinary share capital 135,493 135,493

Issued and paid up share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 consisted of 870,112,016 ordinary
shares with a par value of £0.10 each.
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